AUDIT COMMITTEE

AGENDA

25 June 2012 at 4.30 pm

Council Chamber, Williton

Apologies for Absence

Minutes

Minutes of the Meetings of the Committee held on 26 March 2012 — SEE ATTACHED -
to be confirmed.

Declarations of Interest

To receive and record any declarations of interest in respect of any matters included on
the Agenda for consideration at this Meeting.

Public Participation

The Chairman to advise the Committee of any items on which members of the public
have requested to speak and advise those members of the public present of the details
of the Council’s public participation scheme.

For those members of the public wishing to speak at this meeting there are a few points
you might like to note.

A three-minute time limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked to speak before
Councillors debate the issue. There will be no further opportunity for comment at a later
stage. Your comments should be addressed to the Chairman and any ruling made by
the Chair is not open to discussion. If a response is needed it will be given either orally
at the meeting or a written reply made within five working days of the meeting.

Audit Committee Action Plan

To update the Audit Committee on the progress of resolutions and recommendations
from previous meetings — SEE ATTACHED.

Audit Committee Forward Plan

To review the Audit Committee Forward Plan 2012/13 — SEE ATTACHED

Hinkley Point C section106 Agreement - Financial Governance Arrangements

To consider report No. WSC 87/12 to be presented by Councillor K Kravis, Lead
Member for Resources and Central Support - SEE ATTACHED.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The purpose of the report is to consider financial governance issues relating to the
Hinkley Point C Section 106 Agreement.

Audit of Financial Controls

The purpose of the report is for the Audit Commission to present their assessment of
the adequacy of internal controls to the Committee — SEE ATTACHED.

Quarterly Review of Internal Audit Activity

The purpose of the report is to provide a review of Internal Audit activity plus identify
any level 4 and 5 control weaknesses — VERBAL UPDATE.

Update on Level 4 and 5 Recommendations

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on recommendations made during
2010/11 by the council’s Internal Auditors — SEE ATTACHED.

Council Tax and NNDR Managed Audit Follow-up Report

Example of recommendations made at levels 2 and 3 — SEE ATTACHED.

Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion

The purpose of the report is to provide a review of the Internal Audit activity for the
period April 2011 to March 2012, including an update on recommendations made, and
an overall opinion to support the Annual Governance Statement — SEE ATTACHED.

Annual Review of Internal Audit

To consider report No. WSC 86/12 to be presented by Graham Carne, Group Manager
— Finance and Central Support Services - SEE ATTACHED.

The purpose of the report is to review the effectiveness of Internal Audit, as delivered
through SWAP (South West Audit Partnership) during 2011/12.

Draft Accounts 2011/12

To consider the draft financial statements for comment — SEE ATTACHED

Annual Governance Statement 2011/12

To consider report No. WSC 85/12 to be presented by Councillor K Kravis, Lead
Member for Resources and Central Support - SEE ATTACHED.

The purpose of the report is to review the Annual Governance Statement prior to its
signature by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.

COUNCILLORS ARE REMINDED TO CHECK THEIR POST TRAYS
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RISK SCORING MATRIX

Report writers score risks in reports uses the scoring matrix below

Risk Scoring Matrix

Almost Medium , Very High | Very High
5| Certain | "W O | gy |H9N A5 | 50 (25)
, Medium | Medium . Very High
s 4 Likely Low (4) 8) (12) High (16) (20)
(@] . . .
< Medium Medium High
3 | 3 | Possible | FOW @) | Low () | T q) (12) (15)
4 . )
. Medium Medium
2 | Unlikely | Low (2) | Low (4) | Low (6) 8) (10)
1 Rare Low (1) | Low(2) | Low (3) Low (4) Low (5)
1 2 3 4 5
Negligible | Minor | Moderate Major Catastrophic
Impact
Likelihood of Indicator Description (chance
risk occurring of occurrence)
1. Very Unlikely | May occur in exceptional circumstances <10%
2. Slight Is unlikely to, but could occur at some time | 10 — 25%
3. Feasible Fairly likely to occur at same time 25 — 50%
4. Likely Likely to occur within the next 1-2 years, or | 50 — 75%
occurs occasionally
5. Very Likely Regular occurrence (daily / weekly /| >75%
monthly)

» Mitigating actions for high (‘High’ or above) scoring risks are to be reflected in Service
Plans, managed by the Group Manager and implemented by Service Lead Officers;

» Lower scoring risks will either be accepted with no mitigating actions or included in work
plans with appropriate mitigating actions that are managed by Service Lead Officers.
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WEST SOMERSET COUNCIL
Audit Committee 26 March 2012

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 2

Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 March 2012 at 4.30 pm
in the Council Chamber, Williton

Present
Councillor A H Trollope-Bellew ..o Chairman
CouNCIllOr E MAY ...cvniis e e e e e e e e Vice Chairman
Councillor M J Chilcott Councillor K M Mills
Councillor P H Murphy Reverend V Woods

Members In Attendance

Councillor K V Kravis

Officers In Attendance

Corporate Director (B. Lang)

Section 151 Officer (G. Carne)

Group Manager — Housing & Community (1. Timms)
Principal Accountant (S. Plenty)

Meeting Administrator (H. Dobson)

Also In Attendance

Alun Williams, District Auditor, Audit Commission
Claire Hodgson, Audit Manager of South West Audit Partnership (SWAP)

A50 Apologies for Absence

An apology for absence was received from Councillor R P Lillis.
A51 Minutes

(Minutes of the Meeting of Audit Committee held on 1 December 2011 and Special
Committee held on 8 February 2012, circulated with the Agenda).

RESOLVED that, subject to an amendment to both minutes that A M Chilcott be
changed to M J Chilcott, the Minutes of the Meeting of Audit Committee held on 1
December 2011 and Special Committee held on 8 February 2012 be confirmed as
a correct record.

A52 Declarations of Interests

Members present at the meeting declared the following personal interests in their
capacity as a Member of a County, Parish or Town Council:

Name Minute | Description of Personal or | Action Taken
No Interest Prejudicial

Clir A Trollope-Bellew | All SCC Personal Spoke and voted

Clir P H Murphy All Watchet Personal Spoke and voted
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A53

A54

A55

A56

WEST SOMERSET COUNCIL
Audit Committee 26 March 2012

Public Participation

No members of the public had requested to speak.

Audit Committee Action Plan

(Action Plan, circulated with the Agenda).

The Section 151 Officer advised that once actions from the February Audit
Committee meeting had been added an updated plan would be circulated to the
Committee.

RESOLVED that the Audit Committee Action Plan be noted.

Audit Committee Forward Plan

(Audit Committee Forward Plan, circulated with the Agenda).

The Section 151 Officer advised of a proposed training session to look at the draft
statement of accounts. He noted the request to produce a flow chart showing how
and when the various finance reports feed into each other throughout the year and
that it could be included in the training session.

Members noted that a review of all audit recommendations made throughout the
year would be conducted and the results reported to the Audit Committee at their
meeting scheduled in June 2012.

RESOLVED that the Audit Committee Forward Plan be noted.

RESOLVED that a training session to look at the draft Statement of Accounts be
held on 20 June 2012, at 5.00 pm.

Quarterly Review of Internal Audit Activity

(Quarterly Review of Internal Audit Activity, circulated with the Agenda).

The purpose of the report was to provide a review of the Internal Audit activity plus
any significant control weaknesses that remain unresolved.

The Audit Manager of SWAP outlined the details in the report and advised that the
Audit Charter at Appendix A, attached to the report, related to item 8 on the
agenda.

The Section 151 Officer noted the request that a sample of level 1, 2 and 3
recommendations be available to view at the next Audit briefing meeting.

A query was raised as to whether the number of level 1, 2 and 3 recommendations
were increasing. The Audit Manager of SWAP confirmed that she would be able to
include that information in future reports.

RESOLVED that the Quarterly Review of Internal Audit Activity report be noted.
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A57

A58

A59

WEST SOMERSET COUNCIL
Audit Committee 26 March 2012

Internal Audit Plan 2012/13

(Internal Audit Plan 2012/13, circulated with the Agenda).

The purpose of the report was to inform the Audit Committee of the proposed work
to be undertaken by Internal Audit during 2011/12.

In response to a question regarding the audit of Committee Reporting — Member
Decisions, the Audit Manager of SWAP advised that the audit had not been
scoped in full yet, but it was likely that SWAP would look at whether information
that had been presented to members to make decisions was complete and timely
etc.

A query was raised as to whether the audit would look at whether members had
training on public sector equality. The Audit Manager for SWAP confirmed that
she would be able to include that in the audit.

The Section 151 officer gave assurance regarding concerns the scope of the
Hinkley operational audit, he advised that so far some 106 monies had been
received some of which had been passed on. The payment process was being
carried out in a steady manner and being checked for accuracy and in accordance
with the schedules. A dedicated officer had recently been appointed and would be
carrying out these duties.

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Plan 2012/13, be noted.

Internal Audit Charter 2012-13

(Report No. WSC 53/12, circulated with the Agenda).

The purpose of the report was to provide a review of the Internal Audit Charter and
approve any changes.

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Charter 2012-13 be approved.

Future of the Audit Commission

The District Auditor provided an update on the future of the Audit Commission and
advised that the results of the procurement exercise to outsource the work was
complete. Grant Thornton would be the District Auditors for this Council in
September 2012 and the current Audit Commission staff would be transferred by
TUPE arrangements in November 2012. During the interim period, between
September and November, the District Auditor would have a watching brief.
However, he did not anticipate any problems, as work on the Council’s accounts
for 2012/13 wouldn’t start until about October/November.

Members raised concern that despite most services being passed onto other
organisations such as, the Local Government Association, other services, such as,
research and publications, currently had not and may be lost.

RESOLVED that the update on the future of the Audit Commission, be noted.
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A60

A6l

WEST SOMERSET COUNCIL
Audit Committee 26 March 2012

Opinion Audit Plan 2011/12

(Opinion Audit Plan 2011/12, circulated with the Agenda).

The District Auditor of the Audit Commission presented the report and advised that
the plan sets out the key areas of work, how the Audit Commission fulfil their
responsibilities and gives a brief outline of how the overall procedures were
followed.

During the course of the discussion the following points were raised/addressed:

e The fee charged by the Audit Commission reflected the amount of work to be
carried out. West Somerset Council’s fee was quite low compared to other
authorities and might be reduced further as some of the work was stopped.

e Great concern was expressed regarding the Hinkley Point C monies that
would pass through the Council. Was there insurance to guard against
‘clawback’ should a wrong payment be made? In response the Section 151
Officer advised that there was a memorandum of understanding in place to
ensure the money was discharged according to the obligations. He
recognised that it was a large area of risk and noted that Councillor M J
Chilcott wished to be included in the group that would look to mitigate the
risks.

e The Audit Commission had looked at the community assets on the authority’s
asset register and had not identified any heritage assets to date. The Audit
Commission were of the opinion that should any be identified in the future that
it was unlikely that they would be material.

RESOLVED that the Audit Commission’s Opinion Audit Plan for 2011/12 be noted.

Accounting Policies —2011/12 Statement of Accounts

(Report No. WSC 55/12, circulated with the Agenda).

The purpose of the report was to request that members of the Audit Committee
approve the Accounting Policies for 2011/12 so that the Statement of Accounts
could be prepared on this basis.

The Lead Member for Resources and Central Support advised that the Accounting
Policies must be updated in line with Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting and adapted where necessary for local practices.

In response to the use of some of the wording within the policies the Section 151
Officer advised that a standard set of words were provided by CIPFA, which makes
it easier to demonstrate that the Council were meeting the requirements of the
guidance.

Members noted that the policies were a living document and could be amended if
necessary to comply with actual event that were to be reported in the 2011-12
Statement of Accounts.

RESOLVED that the Accounting Policies 2011-12, be approved.

The meeting closed at 6.05 pm.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN

AGENDA ITEM 5

Date/Minute Number

Action Required

Action Taken

A47 - Certification RESOLVED that the Certificate of Claims No action
of Claims and and Returns annual report, 2010/11, be

Returns noted
A48 Treasury RESOLVED that the combined Treasury No action

Management
Strategy Statement,
MRP Policy and
Annual Investment
Strategy 2012-13

Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Policy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy for 2012-2013,
be noted.

(Policy was approved by
Full Council in March 2012

— Chair of Audit made

comments at that meeting)

A49 Risk RESOLVED that the revised and updated No action
Management Risk Management Strategy, attached to

Strategy 2012 the agenda, be approved.

Update

A55 Audit Members noted that a review of all audit This is agenda item 10

Committee Forward
Plan

recommendations made throughout the
year would be conducted and the results
reported to the Audit Committee at their
meeting scheduled in June 2012.

RESOLVED that the Audit Committee
Forward Plan be noted.

RESOLVED that a training session to look
at the draft Statement of Accounts be held
on 20 June 2012, at 5.00 pm.

No action

This has been arranged

for 22" June 2012 at
1lam

A56 Quarterly RESOLVED that the Quarterly Review of No action
Review of Internal Internal Audit Activity report be noted.

Audit Activity

A57 Internal Audit RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Plan No action
Plan 2012/13 2012/13, be noted.

A58 Internal Audit RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Charter | No action
Charter 2012-13 2012-13 be approved.

A59 Future of the RESOLVED that the update on the future No action
Audit Commission of the Audit Commission, be noted.

A60 Opinion Audit RESOLVED that the Audit Commission’s No action

Plan 2011/12

Opinion Audit Plan for 2011/12 be noted.

A61 Accounting
Policies — 2011/12
Statement of
Accounts

RESOLVED that the Accounting Policies
2011-12, be approved.

Draft accounts are item 13

on this agenda

Page 9




Page 10



AGENDA ITEM 6
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AGENDA ITEM 7

REPORT NUMBER  WSC 87/12

COUNCILLOR KATE KRAVIS — LEAD MEMBER FOR
RESOURCES AND CENTRAL SUPPORT

DATE 25 JUNE 2012

PRESENTED BY

Hinkley Point C section106 Agreement - Financial
Governance Arrangements

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This paper considers financial governance issues and sets out the Councils approach — in
particular the role of CMT and managers — associated with the Hinkley Point C Site
Preparation Works Section 106 Agreement (the Agreement). It does not consider any
planning aspects of the Agreement itself but ensures that the Council’s financial
governance arrangements do not conflict with financial processes and the Council’s
commitments regarding the receipt of contributions that are set out in the Agreement. The
approach set out within the report is designed to ensure sound financial governance
remains a priority for discharging the Council's responsibilities under the Agreement. It is
consistent with the Council's Scheme of Delegation and current practices for ensuring
accountability for spending and effective budget and service plan monitoring, and also
provides for greater visibility of spend in relation to sums paid directly to other bodies under
the Agreement and where the Council will pay money to other bodies in accordance with
the Agreement.

1.2 Effective financial governance and good project and organisational management will jointly
deliver the best practice requirements set out in this paper. The formal governance
framework that will determine how spending decisions are approved is already in place and
operating procedures will shortly be communicated. It is necessary at this point to ensure
that financial governance arrangements are clarified, given the Council’s role in managing
monies already received under the Agreement. Clearly CMT and Group Managers play a
pivotal role in this regard.

1.3 For information, Appendix A provides an update on the funds received pursuant to the
Agreement by West Somerset Council and the sums committed against these monies to
date.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1.  That the Audit Committee recommends West Somerset Council Cabinet to approve the
proposed governance arrangements set out in this report, with regard to the management
of Hinkley Point C section 106 contributions.

2.2.  That a further report be presented to the Audit Committee in September 2012, following

consultation on the proposed financial governance processes with the South West Audit
Partnership.
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4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

RISK ASSESSMENT

Risk Matrix

Description Likelihood Impact Overall

If financial management is poor, there is a risk that funds
will be misspent, that projects will be overspent or funds 4
clawed back by the Developer under the terms of the
section 106 Agreement. The Council would suffer loss of
reputation.

Possible Major

3 12
Medium

Effective financial governance must be evident in the
management of Hinkley section 106 contributions. Agreed
practices should ensure clear and appropriate 2 3

accountability, sound decision-making and monitoring Unlikely Moderate Low

arrangements and swift responses to rectify flagged
concerns.

The scoring of the risks identified in the above table has been based on the scoring matrix.
Each risk has been assessed and scored both before the mitigation measurers have been
actioned and after they have.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Hinkley Point C Site Preparation Works Section 106 Agreement (the Agreement) was
completed on 29" January 2012. It provides for monies in excess of £28m to be made
available to mitigate the effects of the proposed Development, most of which will be paid on
an instalment basis to West Somerset Council, Sedgemoor District Council, Somerset
County Council and some other third parties. Members will recall that a detailed report was
considered by Cabinet in December 2011 and Council in January this year (minute C76
refers), identifying the various mechanisms for distributing monies received under the
Agreement. The approval framework that will govern spending decisions taken by WSC
Cabinet and Full Council is shown in Appendices B — E. Operating procedures will shortly
be confirmed and implemented.

Appendix F shows the intended initial distribution of these funds across the public bodies
that are affected by the Hinkley proposals (as set out in the Agreement). The largest part
of the Developer contribution (£16.9m) is due to be paid to WSC in instalments over the
next two to three years. Some of this sum (£2.2m) will, in accordance with the approvals
given by Council in January, be paid across to other bodies upon receipt, in accordance
with the Agreement. As Members will be aware, a joint Board will be established to
consider and make recommendations to Cabinet and Council about projects to be funded
from £10.5m of contributions relating to the Community Impact Mitigation Fund, the Annual
Community Impact Mitigation Fund, the Housing Fund and the contributions relating to
Economic Development. This is likely to result in funding being made available to a range
of both public and community led projects. As illustrated in Appendix B, the Board’s
recommendations will be submitted to WSC Cabinet (prior to Full Council, if in excess of
£25,000) for approval.

As set out in the report approved by Council, a significant balance of section 106 funding
(E4.2m) will remain to be allocated by WSC directly — either to external parties or to provide
finance for qualifying revenue activity or capital projects within the Council. In some
instances, these funds will directly support the additional identified revenue costs
associated with managing the implications of the Hinkley project over the next two years
(largely staffing costs). £1.5m will be available to support a range of initiatives to benefit
local affected communities. Appendix E shows the proposed route for approving these
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4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

projects and Appendix G indicates the theme categories that these arrangements will apply
to.

It should be noted that the Council’s current arrangements set out in Financial Regulations
for approving new expenditure will continue to apply to decisions relating to the use of
Hinkley section 106 contributions. However, it would be sensible to review the
appropriateness of these arrangements when the overall project governance framework is
fully implemented. There will be opportunity to consider future amendments to the relevant
Regulations.

The Council recognises the importance of sound financial governance and has taken steps
to embed good practice throughout its operations. This includes regular review of budgets
alongside service plan monitoring, to maintain essential links between financial resources
and deliverability. Appendix H shows how Hinkley section 106 project and financial
monitoring might be incorporated within the Council’'s current review and reporting
arrangements. This approach is to be advised, as it should enable the additional monitoring
to become established both swiftly and relatively efficiently, and to be viewed within the
scope of ongoing service activity.

Given the scale and reach of the Hinkley section 106 funding streams, it is vital that
financial management and control is totally effective. Comprehensive arrangements will
need to be established corporately to manage the receipt and investment of Developer
contributions and account for financial activity linked to these monies. This will encompass
the monitoring of spending approvals agreed via the various mechanisms in place. Table 1
below sets out the identified requirements and proposed approach to achieving this. If
accepted, these principles will be used to produce relevant documentation, including
guidance notes and timetables to implement the agreed practices. It is intended that South
West Audit Partnership will be asked to comment on the proposed approach, on behalf of
the three signatory councils to the Agreement.

On a quarterly basis, a full statement of the current Hinkley section 106 funding position will
be produced. This will comprise an overall summary, showing the current receipts,
spending approvals and payments across all categories within the section 106 Agreement,
including — for completeness - those managed by other bodies. This will provide an
indication of progress being made, and can be supplemented with information on projects
underway or under consideration for approval. This will complement reporting requirements
set out in the Agreement.

On a monthly basis, CMT will receive a budget monitoring report covering all Hinkley
section 106 spending under the control of Group Managers; where monies are earmarked
corporately to meet the costs of Hinkley-related service activity, a separate cost centre and
notional budget will be established to ensure that only valid expenditure is charged against
the section 106 funding. The designated Responsible Officer (see Appendix A) will be
accountable for ensuring that this is the case and regular budget monitoring reports and
support will be available, as now. It will be important to identify any items wrongly charged
against Hinkley funds as soon as possible, to enable corrections and ensure that the
mainstream service revenue budget remains on course. Similarly, expenditure funded from
Hinkley monies will need to be managed very closely. At the end of the financial year, valid
expenditure charged against Hinkley-related cost centres will be financed from section 106
contributions held centrally, to remove any impact on the revenue budget (beyond any
costs budgeted for as part of normal planned service activity). A new cost centre budget will
be issued for the following year, based on the estimated spend figure and the approvals in
place.

This overall approach will help facilitate sound financial governance, ensuring that effective

control is maintained over Hinkley earmarked funding; managers with responsibility for
operational delivery will have delegated powers to incur necessary expenditure, and will
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receive sufficient monitoring information and support to enable them to manage the
financial position on an ongoing basis.

Table 1: Principles of Effective Financial Governance
Hinkley section 106 Contributions

Requirement

How Addressed

Initial
Responsibility

Implement appropriate
procedures to ensure funding is
approved according to agreed
criteria

Criteria included in section 106
Agreement (and elsewhere, as
appropriate) will be incorporated in bids
and approvals processes

Major Projects
Manager
(James
Holbrook)

Facilitate best use of resources
in relation to section 106
contributions

Bids and approvals process to consider
Value for Money and opportunities for
levering match funds as appropriate.
Consider VAT position as part of
disbursement arrangements.

Underspends against approved
projects should be identified to consider
reallocation.

Contributions received will be invested
to optimise returns until required and
interest earned will be added to the
section 106 funds available. An
appropriate investment strategy will be
prepared, consistent with the Council’s
Treasury Management policy.

Major Projects
Manager (JH) &
Finance Officer
(Patricia Disney-
Walford)

Finance Officer
(PDW)

Finance Officer
(PDW)

Evaluate proposals to establish
that projects are capable of
being delivered and within the
funds allocated

Project / spending proposals should set
out clear assessment of costs and
intended delivery approach for
validation

Major Projects
Manager (JH) &
Finance Officer
(PDW)

Recognise any ongoing
financial impacts which will fall
to WSC as a consequence of
the initial investment

Approvals process should specifically
address this, as appropriate; relevant
officers need to be involved on timely
basis

Various — will
need to be
addressed via
bid/approvals
processes

Establish and maintain
processes to ensure section
106 funds are only disbursed to
meet qualifying expenditure

Basis for disbursing funds to external
bodies must be established prior to
approval (eg. presentation of supplier
invoice). Strict charge-out procedures
to apply for internally managed
expenditure

Major Projects
Manager (JH) &
Finance Officer
(PDW)
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How Addressed Initial

Responsibility

Requirement

Finance Officer

5.1

5.2

Undertake regular project
monitoring and review of
financial activity, to maintain a
complete and accurate view of
income, spend and future
commitments, and ensure
potential under/over spends are
identified

Appropriate use of IT systems to record
and manage data, coordinated
timetables for updates/reviews, use of
dedicated cost centres, timely provision
of monitoring information and support.

Ensure good financial housekeeping
practices are the norm.

Embed the implementation and
monitoring of Hinkley section 106
projects and finance activity within the
established Service Plan review
framework

(PDW) with

CMT

Regular financial reporting and

Reporting cycle established.

Finance Officer

appropriate use of escalation Procedures in place to identify (PDW) with
procedures to flag concerns exception items and action as CMT

and enable swift remedial appropriate

actions to be taken

Ensure both management and | Budget responsibility is placed at CMT
operational accountabilities are | appropriate level and reflects

clear and appropriate to operational decision making; officers

achieve effective financial recognise the implications of applying

governance section 106 resources

Sustain effective working Build on existing arrangements for CMT

relationships between the
various parties to the section
106 Agreement, in relation to
financial and other governance

matters

Hinkley liaison between key bodies.
Establish appropriate mechanisms and
effective lines of communication

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

These are largely covered, in that the section 106 Agreement makes resources available to

the Council towards the costs of providing finance and project staff resources. It will,
however, be appropriate to consider any significant resource impacts arising from
additional monitoring and related activity within service Groups managing section 106

monies.

The most significant resource implication would be the cost of failing to manage the Hinkley

section 106 funds satisfactorily; these risks are covered in section 3 above. The Council

must demonstrate the highest standards of financial governance to maximise the benefit of
section 106 resources and avoid incurring any unplanned costs as a consequence of poorly
managed projects.

SECTION 151 OFFICER COMMENTS

These arrangements demonstrate the seriousness with which West Somerset Council is
treating its role in relation to this significant project and the governance of public monies.
There will be consultation on our approach with partner bodies to the Agreement, including
EDF, and an audit undertaken by the South West Audit Partnership, which is the internal
auditor to the three councils.
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7.1.

8.1.

9.1.

10.

10.1.

11.

11.1.

12.

12.1.

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

CONSULTATION IMPLICATIONS

Somerset County Council and Sedgemoor Council will have a legitimate stakeholder
interest in the arrangements established by WSC for managing section 106 contributions.
Officers are therefore consulting with finance staff in both authorities and with the South
West Audit Partnership to ensure the proposed practices are acceptable.

ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

REPORT TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE TO BE HELD ON 25 JUNE 2012.

CONTACT OFFICERS: GRAHAM CARNE / TRISH DISNEY-WALFORD
TEL. NO.DIRECT LINE: 01984 635253 /01984 635213
EMAIL: GCARNE@WESTSOMERSET.GOV.UK /

PDISNEY-WALFORD@WESTSOMERSET.GOV.UK
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Audit of financial
controls

West Somerse t District Counci
Audit 2011/12
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The Audit Commission is a public corporation set

up in 1983 to protect the public purse.

The Commission appoints auditors to councils,
NHS bodies (excluding NHS foundation trusts),
local police bodies and other local public services
in England, and oversees their work. The auditors
we currently appoint are either Audit Commission
employees (our in-house Audit Practice) or one of
the private audit firms. Our Audit Practice also
audits NHS foundation trusts under separate

arrangements.
We also help public bodies manage the financial

challenges they face by providing authoritative,

unbiased, evidence-based analysis and advice.
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Summary report

Introduction

1 My audit plan for 2011/12, which | presented to the Audit Committee on
26th March 2012 explained the work | would be carrying out to meet my
Code of Audit Practice (the Code) responsibilities.

2 My responsibility as auditor of West Somerset District Council (the
Council) under the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code is to give an
independent assessment of whether the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Council and the income and
expenditure of the year.

3 ltis the Council's responsibility to put in place arrangements to ensure
proper conduct of its financial affairs, and to monitor their adequacy and
effectiveness.

4 Under the International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) |
am required to gain an understanding of the Council's arrangements to
identify and assess risks of material misstatement to its financial
statements. This will comprise an assessment of audit risks for the
organisation and the systems it uses to produce the financial statements.

5 My assessment of these arrangements will determine the approach
required for the audit of the Council's financial statements later in the year.

6 In addition, ISA 265 specifically requires me to communicate
deficiencies in internal control to those charged with governance; the Audit
Committee.

Audit approach

7 My audit of the financial statements is undertaken in two phases:

m during the year | review the systems that generate entries in the
financial statements in excess of £440,000 (the materiality threshold)
and, in particular, test the controls in these systems that prevent
material errors in the statements; and

m | test entries in the completed financial statements. This takes place
after the year-end usually in August and September.

8 ISA 315 requires the auditor to document his/her understanding of the
financial information systems that provide material balances in the accounts
and to assess the risk of material misstatement arising from the activities
and controls within these systems.
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9 Under ISA330 ‘the auditor's procedures in response to assessed risk,’
the auditor can rely on controls if they have not changed since they were
last tested. The auditor should test the operating effectiveness of such
controls at least every third year. Where there are a number of controls for
which the auditor determines that it is appropriate to use audit evidence
obtained in prior audits, the auditor should test the operating effectiveness
of a sample of these controls each audit.

10 In this context, my 2011/12 work includes walk through testing on the
material information systems to confirm my understanding of the key
controls.

11 The material information systems for the Council are:
General Ledger;

Creditors;

Debtors;

Payroll;

Property Plant and Equipment (fixed assets);
Council Tax;

National non domestic rates (NNDR);
Housing Benefits;

Car Park Income;

Cash receipting; and

Treasury Management.

12 As part of my cyclical plan for 2011/12 | undertook a review of key
controls in the following material information systems:

m  General Ledger;

m Creditors; and

m Debtors.

13 To support this review | have undertaken a detailed review of Internal
Audit's working papers and supplemented its work with my own procedures
for key controls of the above material information systems.

Main conclusions

14 | assessed the controls operating for each information system that lead
to material balances in the financial statements (above £440,000). My
conclusions are summarised in table 1.
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Table 1:

Summary of results of controls testing

This table summarises the conclusions of external audit on the reliance that can be placed on key

financial controls

General Ledger

It was identified in 2010/11 that
some finance staff are able to input
and authorise their own journals.

The Council has now implemented
a retrospective control where these
journals are now reviewed.

The Council's financial procedures
require reconciliations to be
reviewed. A number of control
account reconciliations have not
been reviewed by a supervisor.

| will review the Council's retrospective
authorisation of journals.

| will review the year-end reconciliations
during my audit of the financial
statements.

Creditors The Council had not reconciled | will review the creditor control account
creditor control accounts during the to assure myself that the Council has
year. This was similar to 2010/11 undertaken the year-end reconciliation.

Debtors | have not identified any I will place reliance on the key financial
weaknesses in key financial controls for my opinion.
controls.

Payroll | have identified a weakness with | will review the manager confirmations

the control requiring all General
Managers to agree the quarterly
establishment listing for all their
staff. The control is not operating
effectively because some returns
were not confirmed.

for March (ie the year-end).

Property Plant
and Equipment
(fixed assets)

| have not yet reviewed the key
controls as they only operate after
the year-end.

| will review controls and test a sample of
transactions for my opinion.

Council Tax | have not identified any | will assess the outcome of the Council's
weaknesses in key financial review of the Single Person Discount.
controls.

National non | have not identified any I will place reliance upon the key controls

domestic rates weaknesses in key financial for my opinion.

(NNDR). controls.

Housing Benefits

| have not identified any
weaknesses in key financial
controls.

I will place reliance upon the key controls
for my opinion.

Car Park Income

| have not identified any
weaknesses in key financial
controls.

| will place reliance upon the key controls
for my opinion.
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Cash receipting | have not identified any I will place reliance upon the key controls
weaknesses in key financial for my opinion.
controls.

Treasury | have not identified any | will seek direct confirmation from

Management weaknesses in key financial counter parties for entries in the balance
controls. sheet.

Source: Internal Audit and External Audit

15 | have also reviewed the Council's progress in implementing the
recommendations that | made to the Audit Committee in September 2011. |
will review the results during my audit of the financial statements.

Table 2: Review of progress with the recommendations from the Annual Governance Report
2010/11

2010/11 Recommendation Follow up finding

Investigate the unexplained movement  The Principal Accountant is currently reviewing the
in reserves. movement in reserves statement to identify the
differences and correct in time for the 2011/12 accounts.

Review processes for managing and The Planning Obligations Group which meets quarterly

accounting for grant income. now includes finance team members so that the correct
accounting treatment for grants can be identified. The
Council reconciles the obligations database to the ledger
each quarter.

Confirm the existence of all assets on Annual verification exercise will be undertaken as part of

an annual basis. accounts closedown in order to verify the existence of its
assets.

Review the capacity of the finance The Council has reviewed its closedown plan and has

team, particularly with regards to the additional support in the finance section to ensure that

accounts closedown period, to ensure the Council produces draft financial statements by 30

that deadlines are met. June 2012.

Source: 2010/11 West Somerset District Council Annual Governance Report
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Detailed report

General Ledger
16 | am able to place reliance on the key controls within the general ledger.

17 | reviewed the process for approving journal adjustments and found that
access controls restricted the input of journals. However some staff are able
to both input and authorise their own journals.

18 During the year the Council has carried out a retrospective review of

journals processed during the financial year to provide assurance that the
journals were correctly authorised. | will review this control again after the
year-end to ensure this review has covered all journals processed during

2011/12.

19 The Council's financial procedures require reconciliations to be
reviewed. A number of control account reconciliations have not been
reviewed by a supervisor.

Recommendation

R1 The Council should ensure that control account reconciliations are
reviewed.

Creditors

20 The Council is not reconciling its creditor control account. This
weakness is mitigated by the fact that any information entered into the
Purchase Ledger will automatically feed through to the relevant General
Ledger code.

21 However, the reconciliation is part of the Council's procedural guidance
notes, and as such should be prepared.

Recommendations

R2 The Council should ensure that the creditor control account is
reconciled for 2011/12 as part of the year-end closedown processes.

R3 Creditor control account reconciliations should be completed as part
of the Council's regular processes during the year.
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Debtors

22 My review and testing of this system confirms that there have been no
significant changes to the system in 2011/12.

23 In order to gain the required assurances | have undertaken a mixture of
controls and substantive testing. My team tested a sample of debtor
requests raised in 2011/12 to verify that they had been appropriately raised
in-year and that they have been correctly classified within the accounts.

24 Subject to year-end controls testing | can place reliance upon these
controls and substantive testing for my opinion.

Payroll

25 The Council has in place a control whereby General Managers are
requested each quarter to confirm that staff costs have been charged to the
correct services.

26 | found that not all establishment list confirmations have been returned
to Human Resources (HR) during the year.

27 In order to provide me with the required assurances | request that for
the Finance and Central Support Services a retrospective establishment
check is completed to cover the whole of 2011/12.

Recommendations

R4 The Section 151 officer should review the establishment list of the
Finance & Central Support Services section to provide assurances for
the whole of 2011/12 that the payroll costs have been accurately
recorded.

R5 All confirmations should be completed quarterly by General Managers
and provided to HR to confirm the establishment listing.

Property, Plant & Equipment (Fixed Assets)

28 The Council only updates the asset register for additions, disposals and
revaluations at the end of the financial year.

29 | will undertake audit procedures on a sample of transactions in the
financial statements in August and September.

30 I will review the Council’s year-end controls for verifying the existence of
its assets.

Recommendation

R6 As part of the year-end closedown processes the Council should carry
out an exercise to verify the existence of its assets.
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Way forward

31 The Council should consider the recommendations in the action plan in
appendix 1 so that controls can be further improved. | would like to thank
the Section 151 Officer and his team for the assistance provided during the
audit.
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Appendix 1 Action Plan

Recommendations

Recommendation 1

The Council should ensure that control account reconciliations are reviewed.

Responsibility Steve Plenty, Principal Accountant

Priority Medium

Date 31July 2012

Comments 2011/12 year-end reconciliations to be reviewed by 31 July and reviews

to proceed in-year.
Recommendation 2

The Council should ensure that the creditor control account is reconciled for 2011/12 as part of the
year-end closedown processes.

Responsibility Steve Plenty, Principal Accountant
Priority High

Date 30 June 2012

Comments Agreed

Recommendation 3

Creditor control account reconciliations should be completed as part of the Council's regular
processes during the year.

Responsibility Steve Plenty, Principal Accountant
Priority High

Date 31 July 2012

Comments Agreed

Recommendation 4

The Section 151 officer should review the establishment list of the Finance & Central Support
Services section to provide assurances for the whole of 2011/12 that the payroll costs have been
accurately recorded.

Responsibility Graham Carne, Group Manager, Finance, Section 151 officer
Priority Medium
Date Implemented
Comments Agreed. This has now been done.
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Recommendations

Recommendation 5

All confirmations should be completed quarterly by General Managers and provided to HR to
confirm the establishment listing.

Responsibility General Managers

Priority Medium

Date Each quarter

Comments General Managers will be reminded.

Recommendation 6

As part of the year-end closedown processes the Council should carry out an exercise to verify the
existence of its assets.

Responsibility Steve Plenty, Principal Accountant
Priority Medium
Date 31 July 2012
Comments Agreed
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If you require a copy of this document in an alternative
format or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

© Audit Commission 2012.
Design and production by the Audit Commission Publishing Team.
Image copyright © Audit Commission.

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by
the Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors
and of the audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are
addressed to non-executive directors, members or officers. They are
prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no
responsibility to:

m any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or

m any third party.

FM gglr%ission

Audit Commission

1st Floor
Millbank Tower
Millbank
London

SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 3131
Fax: 0844 798 2945
Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk
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Follow Up Report

Working in partnership with:

AGENDA ITEM 11

West Somerset Council

Council Tax and NNDR
Managed Audit Follow up

Issued to:

Date of Report:
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Issued by:

Steve Farmer
Revenues, Benefits & Debt
Recovery Manager

Chris Summers
Principal Revenues Officer

Graham Carne
Group Manager - Finance &
Central Support Services

lan Loveys
Audit Commission

Gerry Cox

Head of Internal Audit
Partnership

28" November 2011

Jenny Watts
Lead Auditor

Claire Hodgson
Audit Manager



Management Summary

As part of the WSC 2010/11 audit plan a key control review was carried out to assess the adequacy of
controls and procedures in place for Council Tax & NNDR. The key controls identified for this audit are

attached as Appendix ‘A’.

The audit process focused primarily on the following key risks to the service;
e Transaction or event has not occurred or does not relate to the audited body.
¢ Not all transactions have been accurately recorded.
e  Opportunity for fraud, error or corruption exists in the system.

In 2010/11 an opinion of reasonable assurance was given for these risks. WSC have requested that where
areas of key control receive reasonable or comprehensive assurance and are not required to have a full
review as part of the Audit Commission cyclical plan, only a follow up audit is done. Therefore for 2011/12
only the recommendations made in last year’s action plan have been followed up.

The purpose of follow up audits is to provide some assurance to the S151 Officer, Corporate Management
Team and Audit Committee, that agreed actions to mitigate risk exposure have been implemented.

The following table identifies a summary of the progress made in regards to implementing controls to
mitigate the risks established.

Original Priority Score Complete In progress Incomplete
Priority 5 - - -
Priority 4 1 - -
Priority 3 8 2 -
Priority 2 1 1

For all recommendations scored 3 or below conclusions have been based upon Management assessment
of progress only and evidence may not have been sought to verify implemented actions. Further details
regarding actions taken to mitigate risks can be identified within the updated Action Plan.
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Audit Framework Definitions

Control Assurance Definitions

* *
Comprehensive
* %
Reasonable
Partial
A
None

| am able to offer comprehensive assurance as the areas reviewed were
found to be adequately controlled. Internal controls are in place and
operating effectively and risks against the achievement of objectives are
well managed.

| am able to offer reasonable assurance as most of the areas reviewed
were found to be adequately controlled. Generally risks are well
managed but some systems require the introduction or improvement of
internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives.

| am able to offer Partial assurance in relation to the areas reviewed and
the controls found to be in place. Some key risks are not well managed
and systems require the introduction or improvement of internal controls
to ensure the achievement of objectives.

| am not able to offer any assurance. The areas reviewed were found to
be inadequately controlled. Risks are not well managed and systems
require the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the
achievement of objectives.

Categorisation Of Recommendations

When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the
recommendation is to their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the
risks identified for the service but scored at a corporate level and the priority assigned to the
recommendation. No timeframes have been applied to each Priority as implementation will depend on
several factors, however, the definitions imply the importance.

Priority 5: Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the unit’s business processes and require
the immediate attention of management.

Priority 4: Important findings that need to be resolved by management.

Priority 3: The accuracy of records is at risk and requires attention.

Priority 2: Minor control issues have been identified which nevertheless need to be addressed.

Priority 1: Administrative errors identified that should be corrected. Simple, no-cost measures would
serve to enhance an existing control.

Definitions of Risk

Risk Reporting Implications
Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement
can be made.
. Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas
Medium P
of responsibility.
Hiah Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of
9 senior management.
Very Hiah Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both
Y IO senior management and the Audit Committee.
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Appendix A

Key Controls : Council Tax / National Non-Domestic Rates

e CT Debit is reconciled to Valuation List & District Valuer's amendment schedules.
Amendments to the list are input and reviewed.

e Collection rates regularly monitored.

e All bills sent out by mid-March each year.

¢ Bills are generated from the system and are accurate.

e Documented procedures are in place to guide staff in the performance of their duties.

¢ Non-payers and missed payments are followed up promptly and appropriate action taken.
e Amendments to bills are authorised.

¢ Only authorised staff are able to amend the system parameter files. Adequate password
controls are in place and kept under review.

e Suspense account is regularly reviewed and cleared.
¢ Overpayments are independently reviewed and refunds are authorised.
e Targets are set for processing data and workloads are regularly monitored.

e Any agreed actions, to enhance controls, from Internal or External Audit reviews have been
or are in the process of being actioned.

e Claims for discounts are correctly and promptly processed.
e There is separation of duties between administration and collection.
o Write offs are processed in line with Financial Procedure Rules.

¢ NFI Compliance.

Page 60




AN
=
LUl
=
<
&)
Z
L]
o
<

Adueyjnsuo) » suonesisanu| [eads = )SiY = HPNY [eUIBIU|

Page 61



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

0T %8 6 93ed
g 9ded
/ 98ed
g 3a8e(d
G 98e(
t 93ed
¢ 98e(d
7 98e(d

T 98ed

uoluldQ |enuuy s,Ja3euelA ypny dnoto
IULWIOHMI dVMS

TT/0TOZ YHM ZT/TTOT 40 uosiiedwo)
Slpny pawayl

pneJ4 pue 9dUeUJIIA0D

SjoJ3uo) Aa)

SWwa1sAg uonewou|

SMIARY |euollesadQ

:AJINIDDY }IpNY |euJdalu) JO Alewwng

punoJdyoeg pue asodind

3IN°*A0S 1 pNeISaMyinos @
uos3poy-aJie[d

0€SSSE €¢C8TO ‘2L
Jo3euen Upny
uosSpoH a4ied

3N*A08 1 pNeIsaMyinos@uunsg:siuyd
6448¢9 LT6L0 P21
Ja3eue|p 1pny dnolo

uuno suyd

3N*A03:1IPNEBISIMYIN0S @X0I°AJIa8
T/LET9Y SE6TO (191
diyssaunied

1PNy |euJaiu| Jo peaH

X0) A1iap

:9Je 340d34 SIY1 YIm uoi3d3uuod
ul dVMS 1€ spoejuod ayl

S1UlU0)

Page 62



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

"ZTOT Y2JeN 01 TTOT [Hdy JedA 3y3 Jo) VS O
AYIAIIOE BY3 sasiiewwInS 140daJ SIYL "993HWWO) SIY3} pue juswadeue|p Jo1uas Aq pasJde ue|d |[enuuy Y3l Uo paseq
SI JIUN 3Y3 JO MIOM dY3 Ajluewlud °SSDUDAINRLD SH 3ullen|eAad Ag JuswuoJIAUD |0J3U0D S,AlJ0YyIny ay3 uo uojuido
9AI1323[qo pue juspuadapul ue sapIAoId HPNY |eUJRIU| “Aj|lenuue PaMBIASJ S| YdIym Ja3ieyd Hpny |eusalul 3yl Aq
papin3 os|e s| diysiauped syl 'SI0}Ipny |eulaju| Jo 9IN3Isu| 9Y3 JO SpJepuels 9yl 03 sy4om pue pajdope sey dvMS
(dVMS) diysiaulied Hpny 1S9 Yinos ayi Ag papinoad st [1IoUNO) 39SISWOS IS\ 04 DIIAIDS HpNY |eudaiu] 3yl

punou3d)joeg

"JU31U0D S1I 910U 0} PASE dJe SIIqWIBIA pue JuawWaJinbau siy3 Ajsizes o3 si Jodad siyl Jo asodund ay
‘dwuwesdoud aoueinsse Aljenb

1pne |euJajul 9yl JO S}NSaJ 9y} 91LdIUNWWOD pue spJepuels 3sayl Yim aoueljdwod uo juswwod .
B1I9}IJD pue Saunseaw dduewJlo)ad sy jsuiede uolpuNy Jpne [eulalul 3y} 4O duew.o}sad

9y} aslJewwns pue pauue|d sem 1ey3 340M 3yl YIm uaxenapun Ajjenioe yiom ayj aisedwod .
JUSW3EL]S DOUBUISAOD |enuuy 3y} Jo uoljesedaud

9y3 01 JueAla|as Ajdeinoiued sadpnl ipny |euJalu| JO peaH 3yl sanssi Aue 03 uoljualle meup .
S91poq JueINsse Jay1o Aq y40m uo

paoe|d aouel|aJ 3uipn|aul ‘pPaAIIRP SI uoluldo 3yl YdIym wodj y4om ypne ay3 jo Alewwns e juasaud .

uoljedljijenb ay3 40} suoseals ay3z yum 4ayladoy ‘uojuido jeyi o3 suolredijijenb Aue 3so|asip .
JUSWUOJIAUD |0JIUOD [BUIDIUI PUB SWISAS

JuswWa3euew XSiJ S,uollesiuedio 3yl JO SSBUDAINRYD pue Adenbape [|esaA0 9y} uo uojuido ue .

:3uimo||o}

9y3 apnoul pjnoys podas siyl SOy ay3z 1oddns 01 9dueusaA03 yim pasdieyd 3soyiy 0} odald [enuue udlIM
e 9pInoJd p|NOYs UPNY |BUJBIU| JO PEIH YL "HPNY |BUJSIU| S| 324NOS Ydns auQ "} oddns 03 $924N0S SNOLIBA WO
doueJnsse siayied pue |0JIUOD |BUJIDIU| JO SWIISAS DY) JO MIIAJ |BNUUE UE S| JUSWIIRIS 9y (SOY) Iuswalels
9JUBUJIIAOD |enuuy ue ysiignd o1 saiioyine d1gnd sauinbas 110z (puejdul) suoile|nSay 1pNy pue Slunoddy ayl

uollepuawwoddy pue oday jo asodind

*JUdWIA)LIS BIUBUIDAOD |enUUY
9y3 34oddns 03 110daa uojuido
jenuue ue apinoad o3 pasinbau

s1 198euelp Npny dnouo ayy

:uoluidQ [enuuy

T 93ed punoJisdeg pue asodind

Page 63



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

‘g xipuaddy 03 J39j24 asea|d ‘S|ana] ysiy
JO SUOIHUIDQ PUB SUOIIEPUSWWOIAY JO UOIIBSIMOZDIR) ‘SUOIUIFD@ dIUBINSSY |0J3U0) Jo Alewwns e o4 "TTOC
Jaquiada( ul 993w W) SIY3 01 UdAIS sem TT/0TOZ woJj suoide Ajuond g pue § JsuieSe spew ssaisgoud Jo arepdn
Uy "199Q SSDUSSI|2WOH pue [043u0) 3ulp|ing ‘|0Jlu0d 159d ‘suapsem 3o0Q ‘TT/0TOZ Ul ddueunsse |elxed PanILIdL
yolym syipne jeuoiresado dn pamoj|oj os|e am 3sayiy 0} UOIIPPE Ul °[1Puno) 3ayi 1e jjels 1sduowe jusawadedua
pue ssauaJeme dsied 0} dUOP 3Q P|NOI 3JOW eyl 334 9M Se ddueunsse |eiued paniedas Aldjes Ajunwwo)

A1ojes Ajlunwwo) | 9|qeuoseay ¥y saouesnsu|
anisuayasdwo) x x x Ayajes poo4 d|qeuoseay xx pne.4 j4ouag SuisnoH
uoluido upny ealy upny uojuido upny ealy upny

:9]qe1 SUIMO||04 BY3 Ul PASIIBLUWNS dJE ‘PR30 dUBINSSY
|0J3U0D 3y} Yyum Jayiagol ‘ZToz YdJelN 03 TTOZ |4dy pouad ayi 4o} d¥MS Ag paisjdwod siipny |euoiiesado

"Juswadeuew Aq papinoad ssaidoud uo salepdn yum uoje ‘ZT/1T0Z Sulinp apew suoljepuswwodal
G pue t Ayusoud e smoys y xipuaddy -uonsjdwod Aioloejsizes 01 y3nouyi 991HwWWO) Sy} 03} papodal
9Je Ud)e] uoIe uo sajepdn pue S|ielap Spew aJe G JO ¢ Jo AyJold e ylM SUOIIBpUDWIWIODDI BIBYAN "PRJDJ40
S| 92UBJNSSY |0JIUOD) ||BJDAO UB ‘M3IIADJ YIBd JO s3ulpul} 9yl Uuo paseg ‘paiep 193Jel pue pasiyiold ‘quswadeuew
yum paaJde aJe suoiloe ‘paljilusapl dJe JudwWIA0JdW JO) SEJe JO SISSIUEIM JDYAM ‘pJeog juswadeueln
dVMS 3yl yum poaasde ayl1adde ysi4 ayl Jsulede passasse aJe SYSII [pa1sal 2Je S|0JIUO0D pue PISIApP S| Xljew
UOI1eN|BAD YSIJ Y “JUSWUOJIAUD |0J41UOI SUOIIDUN} JO JIIAIDS B JO UOIIEN|EAD P3|ieldp € aJe sypny |euoliesado

|euoneladQ - paiajdwo) sypny

S1IaNV d3iNiFHL e

dNVdd B IONVNYINOD e
STOYLNOD AIX o
SINJLSAS NOILVINYHOINI o
S1IdNV TVNOILVY3IdO e

:A1nndy Jo sbaip A3y
buimojjof ayi s1an0 un|d
upny |[pnuuy paaibo ay|

¢T/TTOC M10M jO Alewwing

Z 98ed AMAOY Mpny [eudaiu] Jo Alewwing

Page 64



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

*Je9A snoinaud ay3 ul dduednsse |ejxed panladal Ydiym saujinod dn yoeg ajesodio) dn pamoj|o} os|e 9

"€T/210¢ 3ulunp dn pamo||o4 34 [|IM HPNE SIYl puUe S92U3|| 31eMOS JO |0J3UO0D
9Y3 03 Ajulew paje|aJ 3sayl °"USAI3 sem dduednsse |elled apew 949M suollepudwwodal € Aydold g1 se Janamoy

‘Juswanoidwi JO} SUOIEPUSWWOIDS G JO t Ajluold ou pPaAI9Ia) Juswadeue|y 19SSy pue 3ulsuddi] 9Jem}os

‘2oueldwo) Alole|n3ay pue A11undas uoljew.ou|
uo JodaJs 33uls 9yl ulyum papodas auam dueldwo) Alisnpu| pie) juswAed pue 109UUO0D) JUSWUIDAOD

d|qeuoseay oueldwo) Aiole|nday 1uswadeue|p 19SSy
xx w33sAs uonrewuoyu| 1 8uisuadI] a4emos
uotuido ypny ealy upny uoluido ypny ealy ypny

ZT/1T0T 404 ueld ay) ul auam siipne G| Suimo||o) ay "9210ead 3s9q Asasnpul yum asueldwod
JI9y1 03 spJedas yum dduesnsse yum Ajuoyiny syl apinoid o3 pais|dwod aJe sypne §|—sSwaisAS uollewaou| e panuIzuo)

swa)sAs uonewuoju| — payajdwo) syupny

CT/TT0C 10 jo Adewwins

€ 33ed AAIDY Mpny |eusdlu] jo Alewwing

Page 65



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

'9Sed Yoea ul UaAI3 sem dduesnsse
9|qeuoseal pue A|9A1109449 Suilesado aiam sjoJ1u0d Ay Jo Ajuofew 1seA ayi 1eys pul) o1 Suiseald sem 1| ‘SJUNOJJY
S,|12uUn0) 3y J40 USIS 03 J40M JI3Y3 3In0 Asued Asyl usym s3uipuly 9S9Y3 UO SNJ0J ||IM SIONPNY [BUJSIXT BY3 1ey)
A1) St 3] “pa348e usaq aAey uoila|dwod 104 s1ep 1934e) pue SI92140 d|qIsuodsas 0] paudisse usaq aAey 3say |
‘uoi3oe Ayjluord 3J1AISS {7 [9AS] B 949M SUOU YdIYM JO SMIIASJ 3S9Y} W04} SullNsSaJd SUOIIde 7 9J9M 343y} ||e U]

Ajuo dn mojjo4 11}ouag SuisnoH Ajuo dn mojjo4  YANN % Xel |1ouno)

1uswadeuep
Ajuo dn mojjo4 [|o4Aed 9|qeuoseay XX Ainseau)
d|qeuoseay XXy s10192Q d|geuoseay y¥ SJ103}1paJ)

9|geuoseay ¥
uoluidQ ypny

guinunoday ule|n
ealy lpny

9|qeuosedy x¥
uoluido Mpny

3unnunodoy |eyde)
ealy ypny

:SMO||0} Se 3Je 9911WwWo)
01 pauodaJ Ajsnoinald pue g10g Ya4eN 01 110z |Hdy pouad ayy Suunp dvMS Ag pa1ajdwod siipny |0J41u0) ASY

‘dn pamoj|o} a4e Jodau s, 4edhA snoinaad ay3 ul paliauapl sanssi Ajuo JeaA ayj ul si0ypny [eulaixi ayl Aq
M3IA3J 10} PIINP3AYIS 10U SWIISAS 104 ‘pud JedA 1e sjuswalels |eldueuld S,[12UN0) 3Y3 SSsSe ASyl uaym siolipny
|eud91x3 9yl Ag paJapISUOd a4 SMIIASL 3SaY} Wod) SSulpuly 9yl ‘dduesnsse AJessadau ayl yum juawadeuew
apinosd 03 AjPAIdaye Sunesado aue sioupny |eusaixd ayl Aq paiiauspl S|oJluod AsY (1B 1eyl |elauassa sl
3 "Swa1sAs |elpueuly Jofew s, [19uno) ay3 03 Sulle|as sysid Asy uo Ajluewrad sasnooy ssad0.d Jpny |0J3u0) Ad) Byl

sjo41uo) A9y — paisjdwo) sHpny

“=paNUIIU0)

Z1/T10¢ MO/ JO Alewwins

{ 98ed

AMAOY Mpny [eudaiu] jJo Alewwng

Page 66



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

‘"T1/0T0C
woJ4j ululed] pue ssaualeMy [eulaiu| - A19jeS 3 Yl|eaH pue S1S9491U| JO 4915139Y 4e1s dn pamoj||o4 0s|e I\

sjuawasduelse
diyssauned

awoou|
Suisiwixe|\  3|qeuoseay xx 3JOM 1B A19)eS g yijeaH
suoloesuels] uoI1123|0)
Aued palejay  9jqeuoseay XX awoou| /jueg pue yse)

S20UBMO||Y
a|qeuoseay xx 19 swie|) 42140 Ajinuiuo) ssauisng
uojuido 3pny ealy upny uojuido 3pny ealy upny

:pa19|dwod asam adAy s1yl Jo Smalnal /£ Sululewad 9yl pue (Jes[4aA0 935) SaWY] Se SUOpP 9J9M 9S9Y1 JO 8 "SI
J9ys31y Ajpuasayui ale 1eyl [1IDUNO) dY3 JO SEIJe JO MIIADI SJUBINSSE [EnuuUe Ue SIPIA0Jd OS|e 3| ‘|9A3] d14103ds
9JIAJISS uey) Jayles 91esodio) e je 1oedwl Jo/pue Pa[|0JIu0d aJe eyl seale 3ulland SS0Jd 0} Sullefad sySi Asy
uo Ajluewrdd sasndoy ssa204d 1pny uo13dnNJII0) pue pned4 ‘9dUBUIIA0D By — SMIIADY PNel{ pue dUBUIIAOD

" paNuUIIu0)

pnei4 pue 33ueuJanon — pajajdwo) sypny ZI/1102 110 JO Adewiwung

G aded AMAIOY UPNY [EUIIU| JO Alewiwing

Page 67



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

‘¢ |9A3] AjioLId DDIAISS 9J9M 9T °|0JIUOD |BUJIU| 0) SJUBWSACIWI PAIHIIUBP! O/ Ul PRI|NSDI SMIIAL 9SaY |

M3IAD
MB3IA3J Ad1j0d - uonndnuaio) (14eaq@)  |eonAjeuy - uondnuio)

d|qeuosedy Xy JO pneJ{ woJjiealyl 3djgqeuoseay Xy J0 pneJq wouy jealyl
$924n0say Suiuue|d |eueuly

d|qeuoseay Xy paonpay yum SuiSeuel  3jqeuoseay Xy wJia] wnipa
9|qeuoseay X uolle3ala( JO aWaYdS  d|qeuoseay XX siutejdwo) Suideue|p

M3IAY JUBWILIS
juswaseue|A 108JIUOD)  d|qeuoseay x¥ 92UBUIBAOD |ENUUY

uojuido upny ealy upny uojuido upny ealy upny

:diyssaupied
9y3 ssousoe 3d130eud 1s9q aJeys o) Ajpuepodwi asow Ing ‘[le Aq padualiadxa Sassauyeam |041u0d Ajlauapl o1
Ajlunjioddo ue apinoad spiodad asayl pieog 1uswadeuelN dYMS 24l Yum padeys pue uodad diysisulied e
O}U| POSIJBWWNS 3B SMIIADJ 353Y} WOJ4 SSUIPULl Y] "UOISSIS JUBWISSISSY-4|DS YSIY PUB |0JIUO)) B Je SIDIHO
JU3I|D JouMed YHM uoidunfuod ul palyIuapl 9J9M SMIIAJ 3sayl Jo Aluolew ay) diysiaulied ayi ssooe
S931IS J9Y10 1B P3JIA0D OS|e 3JaM SMIIAJ 3uIMO||0} 3yl ‘Dnoqge parsodas yJom ayl Suila|dwod 03 uonippe uj

" paNuUIIu0)

S}pNY paway] pnel4 pue 3dueuIIN0D — pal3jdwo) sypny ZT1/1102 110 JO AJewiung

g aSed AMAOY Mpny [eudaiu] Jo Alewwing

Page 68



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

0 [4 61 S¢ 66 S6 s|eyol

SMaIAaJ ST = ZT/1T0¢

SM3IA3J 6 = TT/0TOT

0 T 91 S S LT pne.4 13 32UBUIIN0D
SM3IA3J G = ZT/TT0C

SM3IARJ 9 = TT/0T0T

0 0 0 / 144 (014 sjos3uo) A9y
SM3IA3J 7 = ZT/TT0T

SM3IA3J T = TT/0T0C

0 0 1 1 ST [4) swa)sAs uonewsojul
SM3IA3J ¥ = ZT/TT0C

SM3IA3J § = TT/0T0T

0 T Z 71 9 9¥ |euonesado

ZI-T10¢  T1-0T0¢  ¢I-T10Z  TT-0T0C  ¢I-T10C  TI-0TOC ealy MaIADY
s Aond t Ajiond € Aond

"CT-TTOC PUe TT-0T0ZC 40} Hpne jo sadAl Juaiapip 9yl 40j [9A3] Aluolud yoes je suoljepusauwwodald
JO Jagwinu 3y} o uosiiedwod e SMoys Mo|3q 9|gel syl ‘Jeah ayl Inoysnoiyl spew suollepuswwodal Ayuond
J9y31y ay3 Jo Aewwns e paisanbau 99111wwo) Jpny 3yl ‘AlIAI0E JpNY [BuJdlU| JO MIIASJ Alud1uenb 1se| ayl 1y

" panuuo)

TT/0T0Z YHM ZT/T10T j0 uosiiedwo) ZT/TT0C 1O/ JO Atewwing

L 93ed A1AIDY Mpny |eusalu] jo Alewwing

Page 69



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

"04€8 SEM 24025 oeqpaa) ageane ay) 19SI9WO0S 1S9 104 "%EQ 94 0}
2402s Yoeqpasy ageane Jualind ayy smoys diysiaulied ayl Joj pJedalods i1sale| ayl ‘poos juasasdas pjnom %G/
9J9YM 135 SI %G8 JO 1984e] e ‘spieog dY/MS 2Y3 01 pajuasald pJedalods paduejeg ayi Jo 1ed sy “wsljeuoissajoud
pue Ajyenb ‘ssaulawiy suieSe uoioeysiies agned 03 sI sadieuuonisanb a8yl Jo wie 3yl JIVIO pPIleUIWOU
Jo JaSeue|\ 921AJ9S BY3 01 1IN0 JUSS S| 2JIBUUOIISINY UOIIDR)SIIES JBWO0ISN) B M3IASJ JIpNe Yydes Jo 3S0|d 3y} 1y

"ZT0T dunf JO pud ay3 24049 pasijeul} 9q 01 palasdiel
SI Sly| ‘HodaJ Siyy Jo awil syl 1e pasijeul g 01 Yedp T yum agdels 1uodau 01 paia|dwod usaq aAey supne 1SOA

"'SM3IASJ 97 Ud¥EMapUN aABRY aM [e10} U] “pade|dad Aj|njssadons uaag mou sey
oym ‘Jageue|\ HpNY 1| JNO JO SSO| aY3 1Se3| 10U ‘diysiaulied ay3 SSOJIB SaNSS| 92JN0SaJ WU} uiljnsal ‘uoildnpal
%G panoidde s pieog juswadeue|\ dy/MS Yl 199W 01 JIpJO Ul S}PNe 3sayl JO T aAOWJ 03} AJessadau sem
} ‘pauue|d SM3IASJ /7 JO |BIO} B DJ3M 3J3Y] ‘|IDUNOD) 19SI3WOS 1S9\ 10} UB|d [BNUUY ZT/TTOZ @Y} 03 spaesal Yy

‘diysiaulied a1sepn 19S49W0S
9y3 Suipnjoul ‘saipoq AJeipisgns JO Jaqwinu B 03 3JIAISS HPNEe |eulalul ue sapirosd os|e dyMS ‘siauried Ady 2T
9Say3} 03 UOIIIPPE U] "J31S2INO|H Ul [I2UNOD) 1D13SIQ BUO PUB UOASQ Ul 1914351 U0 ‘19s10( Ul S,|12UN0D 1D13SIQ OM]
‘51014151 19SJ2WOS DAL} Y3} “DJIYSIIM PUB 19510(Q ‘195I3WO0S JO S311UNOI 334yl Y3 SISA0D MOU d¥MS “diysiaulied
3PNy 3y3 03Ul 1S9 YINOoS ay3 Ul [1ouno) Aleyiun 1sa8Je| 8y ‘@41Ys}{IM JO UoIIdNPOJIIUL Byl Mes am Jeah ay3 uling

duewIopdd dVMS

‘spJeog diysiauped
pue jusawaseue|p
dVMS 343 0} siseq

Jejn3aJ e uo aduew.ojsad
syodaua diysiauyied
1PNy |eusdlu] Jo peaH aylL

:9Juew.oiod

Q 93ed AIAIDY Mpny |eusdlu] jo Alewwng

Page 70



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

"JUdWaA0Jdw] 40O} SUOIIEPUSWWOIAI pieoq uo a3 el 03 Allunjioddo ay3 swodam ujede pue swajqoid
|e1aualod aAlR24ad Ayl a4aym seade ojul Ajusdo dyMS yoeoudde ued Asyi |99 Asyl Agaiaym juswasdeue|p
yum diysuone|ps pood e S| 243yl UOINPPE U] IPEWw SuoljepusWWOoIA dYl 0} dAIsuodsas pue s3ulpuly
dV/MS J0 9A10ddns 9q 01 |12UN0) 13SJ9WOS 1S9\ JO JUBWSZeUB|Al JOIUSS 3yl PUNO) dABY dYYMS JeaA 3yl JanQ

*19SJ9WO0S 1S3/\\ 1B JUSWUOJIAUD |0J3UO0D |BUIDIUI DAIFID)D UE 01
JUBWEIS) S| SIYL “JUdWISeUB|Al YHM SUIIDUOD YdNS 3Sied 01 SN paJinbad 1eyl sanss| ou punoy ¢1/TTOZ Ul YoM
}pne Jno ‘Janamoy ‘9 xipuaddy se payoeile uaaq aAeYy pinom sysiy aielodto) ysiH AJaA ||e jo Alewwns y

Juswaeue|A 19ssy / Suisuadl] 24em1oS e
suoipoesued] Aled pajejoy e

dwoou| SuisiwixelN e

1uUswWasdeue|\ 10e41UOD) e

Ayojes Ajlunwwo) e

Alnuiuo) ssauisng e

sdiysisouped e

‘9Je 9OURINSSY [Bl1Ed POAISIDI 1BY) SM3IARI BY |

", 90UBINSSY |elled, PapJ0Jje uda( dABY / PUB ,2IUBINSSY
9|qeuoseay, QT 9Ae3 am ‘T 03 ,9duUeinssy dAIsuaya4dwo), |9A3] 1S9y31y 3yl apiaoad 0} pased|d aiam am
‘uoluldo jipne ue UaAI3 3J9M ||e 9 Sululewad Y3 JO4 "UOIIdNPAJ %G e 0} paaJsde siauped dyAAS ||e Se paAowal
3q 01 J221JJO TSTS 2yl Yyum poaaude sem jeyl T sem aJayl ¢T/TT0C ul pauueld Ajjeuiduo supny £z 9yl JO

uoluidQ s,498eue|p Hpny dnouao

*JU3WIA)E]S IUBUIINOL)
|enuuy 3y} Joddns

0} J10dau uojuido jenuue

ue apinoad o3 pasinbau

s1 198eue|A Hpny dnoao syl

:uouidQ [enuuy

6 93ed AAIDY Mpny |eusdlu] jo Alewwing

Page 71



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

‘paSeuew ||am aJe S9AI393[qO JO JusWAIIYDe
9y} isuiede sysu pue APAIDRYS Suijesado pue 2dejd ul 9Je S|OJIUOD [euJdlU|  “PI||0JIU0d Aj3enbape

3g 03 punoy aiam Ajpuofew ayy se ‘JeaA ayy Sulnp pamainaJ seale dy} Jo 30adsal Ul ‘@ouUeINSSE d|qeuoseal
J2}JO 0} 9|ge We | pue JUSWUOJIAUD SIY} JsuleSe SSWO02IN0 pue YoM lpne jo dduejeq ayl Patapisuod aAey |

panunuo) uoiuidQ s,498euelp Hpny dnouao

s+ pANUIUO)

:uoruidQ [enuuy

Page 72



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

(‘pounod
9y} 404 YoM 01 S3Sead 4221440 ue i ajdwexa
ZI0Z 3snbny T Jo 210p uonoIUaW AW Joj) paudisseun Jo (sisixa  diyssauyed
pasinay ‘|pronid si ,pajjoJiuod, s| bulpuads e j odwexs Joy) Jespun aq Aew
DY} 23pA35UOWSP 03 3351031 $1O013U0D jJuswadeuew 10e41U0d JOJ AN|IQISUOASDY e
ay1 fo asn ayy Abaipais uawalnidodd ay}
Jo ysaifai o Jo upod sy :9/€T 10 sp aopdn -s10([15uN03 40 Ngnd a3
‘asn JO siaquiaw wouy sjulejdwod o3 puodsad
J1391e41s Joj pue adejd ul syuswaduedse ‘pai1epdn Ajuengas pue a1edndde | JO salanb Jamsue 01 3|qe aq 10U Aew 1| e
c1/8/1e aAeY M jeyl SupPayd 4oy si 3 “uswndop | ‘939|dwod s J493SI8a)  S}oesyuod vy}
0}  POSIN9Y | |euonpesado ue jou sI U se Ajuoud | 18yl aunsua 03 9dejd ul Ind aJe sassadoud :sanss| SUIMO||0} 33 JoIUN0JUD
y3iy e sl siy3 anslaq 1,uop | Ing pasodoud | 3eys sainsus oddng [esiud) pue dueul4 | Aew |1DUNO) 9yl ‘S1OEJIU0D JO SulioHuOW
Z102/90/0€ | s! J931s18a4 s}oesuod 8y} jo dsuedp Yy |- JoSeuey dnolo Byl 1BY) PUSWWIODAY | | [BJIUSD  INOYUM eyl Sl B S| ausyl 19315183y S10BIIUOD
'U0IIN313SU0I Y3 JO M3ainal
'V Xipuaddy
o S0 o Lo e L oot e e s pasn
’ ’ S se saJnpadoid juswaoSeuew  3oeIUOD
‘91epdn | Jo sjoadse e uo 2duepind  JsJe’d
s,4eaA 1xau jo ped se psemuoj Ind 3q ||IM | JO |EUOIIIPPE BpPN|DUl 0} pPIJUBYUD 3( "SeaJe awos ul |1e1ap Supde| siapJ0
Vv Xipuaddy Ul SuojjepudwWWod3l 3y} Ing | 01 SI9PJO Sulpuels 30eJIu0) 1UdJ44nd By} | Sulpuels 10eJu0) By} 03 Ianp ssa8euew
1ouno) Aq panosdde uaaq Ajusdas aney | Joj saduedse 1oddng |esaua) pue dueuld | A paidope aq pinod saunpadosd ad1oead 91epdn sJ1apJQ
Z102/TT/1€ | siapi0 Suipueis pasinal ayy Ajgreuniojun | - JaSeuely dnolo Byl 1Y) PUSWWODAI | | 153G 30U JO JUIISISUODU] Jey3 dsld e S| auay] | Suipuels 10eJ3U0D
juswaseue 3eIUO0D
uondy jo aippdn
91eq pasisy / uo1dy pasudy s,Juswaseueypl UOIIY PAPUBWIWO0IDY paynuap| sty puno4 ssauyeam

V XIAN3ddV

ZT0Z Y24eN T€ 03 TTOZ |HdY T poriad ay3 Ul }IOM PNy [EUIBIU| WO PILYIIUSPI SORLIOL 3IIAISS YSIH / Wnipan

Page 73



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

z10z/t1/1e

'U0IIN313SU0I Y3 JO M3ainal
ay1 Jo und sp sosH 01 arpbpdn ayi Jo 1pd sp
paJapisuod aq |[Im Siyl :9/€T 1o Sb aipopdn

SOSD 40 9epdn ul papnpul aq oL

DS JO }|BYaq U0 243Yymas|d
19| S10eJ43U0D pue ‘A}lud JaYjoue o jeyaq
uo [1PUNo) 3y3 Ag 19| $30EJIUO0D ‘|1DUNO)
9yl Agq 19| spesyuod 01 saydde sy
18y} Jed|d 3q p|noys 3 "49315139Y S10eJ41U0)
9y} U0 papJodas JO wooJ4 3JuoJls 3yl
ul J9Y3Ie ‘Ajjesuad pjay 2q 03 uollewJojul
9y} pue  ‘(syonpe  pue  ‘ulods
pue eld}4d UOIRI|BS Se yans) ‘Sl dwexd
[OUNO) poOMIUlJG By} IUNOdJE O3ul
Supjer ‘492140 9|qisuodsas ayy Ag 9|l uo
paulelas 9q 0} UOIIBWIOUI BY} ‘S10BJ4IU0D
J0 8uipJodas ayl Suipsedas suoldnsIsul
J14129ds apnppul 01 palepdn aie SI9PIO
Suipueis 30eJ3UOD) 1BY) S2UNSUD SSDBH
- J198euey dnoJuo 3yl 1eyl pUSWIWOIA |

"WaY} JO aJemeun aJe Juswadeue|p
JOludS JO  SaJIAIBS  |eS9]  1eyl  Ing
151X3 Aew S10BJIUOD 1BY] dSIJ B OS|e S| aJayL
‘Mpne ue jo yed se 4o Aianb Jo judaAs ay3 ul
uoI}B}|NSUOD J0} d|gejieAeun aJe pue Ajises
p91e20| g 3JOUUED UOIIBWIOJUI JUBAJ|DI
J9Yl0 pue S}0BJIUOD 1By} S B SI U3y}
‘AjleJiuad uonewJsojul 1oeJjuod Suideuew
Joj walsAs 1snqos e S| [JdYyl SsSIuN

uoleluawndoQg
10eJ1U0)

"an|en 1s3q 40}
paulqwod aq P|nod S1oeJ3uod 3dijnw aJam
seaJe Jo sa1349uAs Ajiauspl 01 uonew.oyul
M3IASJ 0} 9J|ge SS3| e juswadeueln

"92IAJ3S Ul S)eauq Jo ‘pajenosau aq o1
8uiney suojsualxa Aj3sod 03 Suipes) ‘uolysey
Ajpwiy e ul pamaual g Jou Aew S1oeJiuo) e

uony jo
91k pa9.43y

a1ppdn
/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 74



"S3|e/\ PUB pue|Su3 Ul JpNY |euJalu|
10} 92130844 JO BPOD Y4dID dY} PUB SI0UPNY |BUIIU| JO SINHISU| B} JO JIOMIWEIH SR |BUOISSDJ0Id |BUIDIU| BY} UM Ajdwod 03 pais|dwod S| HI0M dyANS

(€T/2102 TO dn pamojjoj) sjusawaduenry diysiaulied

£€1/210Z 410f buinas 196pnq ayy Jo 1od
Sp dUop Uaaq soy siy| :9/ET 10 sp appdn

‘elep 198pnq 419yl Suipepdn
ul JoMm pajlelsp aJow  pue s3uiesw
9yl yum 3SBuinels ‘deah siyy ssaoold ay3

‘ejep 393pnq J19y3 Sunepdn ui
3}JOM p3|lelap aJow pue siapjoy 1a8pnq
yum sdunssw 419yl yum 3Suluuidsq
‘€T-7T0C 404 ssaooud Suines 198png ay3
ul JaJl4es pade3us sJe wesal ddueuly Y3

(saeaA

210Z/€0/TE | ul Ja1juea pade3us aJe weal dueuly dY] | paWIIIUOD sey SSI84 Jadeue|n dnouo ay | 24nin4) Sunias 198png
"JeaA ay1 ul 191e| 2419YMB3S|d punoy aq 03
. m:MH\MMWN“xmmﬁmwﬁmgm wmﬁoct%n 9ABY ||IM S||ejuoys Aue pue pansiyoe 3q
p q soy SI4L ‘9/€T 3 opan 10U |Im S198png 1BY} NS DY} SaseaJdul
‘llom se 193pnq €T/ZT0C | 198pNnqg €1/ZT0C @Yl Sulwiojul oy MalAe | Siyy  ‘elep  3unsedalo) /Supjiewydusq
9U1 wJojul aJ0ja49y) pue 193pnqg TT/0TOZ | YUM ‘siapjoy 198png yum sSuileaw Jiayl | pue  aunypuadxa J0 suJanied
9yl ul saoueuen Ajnuspl 01 suapjoy | Suunp 193png ZT/TTOC @Yl Ul SadueleA | snolasud  uo  paseq  swodul paldafoud
198png yum s3uiesw Ji9yy jo 1ed se weal | y3iydly wesl ddueuly 3yl aUnsud | Jo suoldipasd sjqeuoseas yum paiejndod (4edA
2T0Z/€0/T€ | @ueuly ayy Aq uayemuapun aqg ||Im Slyl | 0} paasde sey jueunoddy |edidulld Y| | 10U 3Je SIPOI PI|ILIBP PUB S3UIUSI 150D §| | ua44n)) Sunas 198png
awodu| Suisiwixen
'sIy1 apnjoul 03 paiepdn aq p|noys
S19pJO  Sulpuels  10BJUOD)  PAMO||O}
d
uOBMISU0? 21 fo MAIADI usaq sey a4npadoud anp 1eyl wIuod 0}
wayl Ag pajjeniul pue juasald sassauIM ‘Aldie) pajeaa
ay1 Jo und sp sOsH 01 arppdn ayi Jo 1pd sp
215pISU03 3q I SIYL 9/ET 30 50 230pd) 9yl Aq polep pue pauSis SJe SpJOJAJ | UDSQ SABY SJOPUD] ||B JBYIdYM SSISSe sjuswpuawe
P ’ S Sujuado Jspudl 1Yl SAUNSUD  SSDR4 | 01 YNJIP SI U ‘SpJodas uluado JBpud) O} | pUB SIOUID - SPIOIY
2102/21/1¢€ 91epdn sQS) 01 pappe aq p|noys ‘pajoN | - JoSeuey dnoldo syl 1eyy puswwodas | | apew sadueyd jsulede saunjeudis noyupn | SuiuadQ Japua
uondy jo a1ppdn

91k pa9.43y

/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 75



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

‘Ajlenuue pamainal 34 01 SIy}
Joj pue ‘diystaulied ayl ul ulewsad pjnoys

‘siseq [enuue
ue uo diysiauyed yoes aien|eas 03 pasn
90 Ued 1By} JJOMaWel) MaIADJ e Sullelp

"S9A1309[qo pue swie
S1 YUM Bul| ul 1AISS B SulIdAIBp AjJuadiye
jou S| 3jeyy diysiouped e ul a8eSus 0}
S9NUIIUOD |IDUNO) Y} pue paAalyde 3 jou
1ySiw Asuow J0j dnjen YSi B S| 943y MIIAI

JSM JI dulwudlap 01 1SIPPdYD Byl ppe | usaym g xipuadde jo 3ualu0d Byl 3sh | |enuue ue Joj sMoje ‘Ydiym padojansp jou Jdomawedy
V/N | 03 sasodosd sSDw4 Jadeuel\ dnouo syl | 01 paadde sey $SI7p4 J1adeuey dnoug ay] | si sdiysisulied SUIMIIASI JOJ JIOMBWEL) € J| | MBIAS diyssauped
'sdiysiaupied jo
"diyssauied mau e | JuswaSeuew ayi 104 ISIPPaYd dlesodiod e
dn 8umas uaym adsuepingd Joy Jusawadinbaa | Suiyyedp usym 3 pue q ‘O sadipuadde asn ‘P343pISU0I 3q 10U [|IM Seale
V/N | @Y1 sassalppe os|e padojanap aouepind ay] | 01 paaide sey $S)7g4 Ja8euely dnouo ayl | ASy ||e ySsu e sI 343yl 1SII9Yd e INOYUM 1S1PpP3Yyod diysiauped
‘sdiyssaupied jo
juswa3euew 3y} Joj duepind ajesodiod | ‘sease A3y J9A0D J0u Op 4o Ajjued Ajuo Jayle
Sunyeap ur @ pue Oy sadpuadde 3sn | yoiym ‘aaejd Supjel sad130ead Jualsisuodul Jo
V/N ‘padnpoJd uaaq sey ouepingd aresodio) | 03 passde sey sSIg4 Ja3euey dnou ayy | ysi4 e SI 349yl dduepind a1esodiod INOYUM 2oueping diysiauped
‘diystauyied ayy jo
2ouedlyIudis ay3 Jo4 ajeuolriodoudsip aq ||Im
924nosas pue juswaSeuew dduewsoylad
‘yoeoudde ajesodiod | ‘sjuswaduedse |eldueuly ‘9oueulanod
e wJoj} 0} Yy Xxipuddde ul pIjielsp | JO |9AS] BYl YSM Usymny e S| [UdyL
‘paonpoud auam sdiysiaulied TT J0J S9U0DS | SB [IDUNOD 1DMISIJ 19SJ9WOS YinoS Aq | 'a1eqap 03 uado si jou Jo juedyiudis aue
pue sdiysiauiied paiizuapl ayy oy pajjdde | pasn uoizediyisse|d diyssauped ayy asijian | ASyr Jayisym ‘sdiyssaulied SuiAyissed oy sdiystauyied
V/N | sem 2douepind padojansp Ajjeusaiul ay] | o1 pasude sey $SJ7g4 J93euey dnouo sy | ASojopoyiaw e aAeY 10U SIOP |1DUNO) By §| | JO uoleayisse|d
uondy jo a1ppdn

91k pa9.43y

/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 76



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

|pdauab a2yl Japun uoIsnjoxa  Iifirads

9y} WoJj soduednsse uleljqo oaduednsul

jueoiyiudis  Jayns Aew pue AspjuiH 3e

D S| UOIIDIPDJ SD YD3| AD3JINU D J0f 4an00 ou | Joy  Ajjiqisuodsal  Yum  1UBIUNODDY | JUSPIDUL UE JO JUIAD BY) Ul PaJnsul S |12uno)
V/N | SI 242y 10y wWUfuod upd | - Juiod A3yuiy | [edpuud 8yl  1eyl  puswwodas | | 9Yl JaYiaym o3 Sse Allue|d Jo yde| e S| alayl Ad1jod ddueunsu|
Suiuueld Alinunpuo) ssauisng
s 10edwi
Jofew pue APy e se paJods uldaq sey ‘paidnusip aq |im uodn Aj4 o1gnd
pue J33si3a4 sl juswadeue|y 91e40di0) [e42uUd8 3y} YdIYyM SDIIAIDS XSIJ Jaylny e S|
9y} Ul papnpul udaq sey suoliesiuedio 249y] ‘Buluaddey wouj siyl 3uanaud o3 aoe|d
Jouped Aq sind Jo 1oedwl [eludWIIAP, "J91SI824 351 | Ul 2J4e s|0Jlu0d AJessPI9uU Byl dduesnsse
9y} J9ASMOH  "J433s1894 Sl 93edoduod | 91esodiod Y} UO PIaPJ0IDJ BJe [IDUNOD | pIdNpaJs  SI 49yl  sadnjiey  diysisaulied
9y} U0 papJodaJ Ajjenpiaipul us3g 10U | Y3 Jo suauled Juedliudis ||e 3eyl aJnsud | Juediudis  Jo S Byl  Idpajmoude
V/N | ®Aey |12uno) ayi jo siauned juedlyiudis ||y | 01 pasuse sey $SD7p4 JaSeuely dnodg syl | Jou ssop J9asidas sl 1esodiod Byl | | 49151834 ysu a1es0dio)
‘sdiyssaupied Ay Jo uedijiudis
J141939ds Jay3o ay3y jo Aue o3 Sunejas sysu
apnppul 0} paJeadde suou pue pPamalAal ‘ue|d
2J9m sue|d JaylQ ’S1SOJ JO |0J4IUOD paliWl| | IIAIBS Yoed Jo ued aue yaiym ‘siaisiSal ‘palyauapl
sey DSAM - SIS00 dMS / [esodsip asnjas | s ayl ul paunided aue sdiysisuned | 9q [IIM  |1DUNOD By} 109ye Aew  yaiym
Jo 1500 Suiseasoul Jo 1eaiyl ayr Suiou | YUM pPI1eIDOSSE SHSII S} 2JNSUD 0} PI3U | SYSII DSOYl DIUBINSSE PIdnpas S| I3y}
‘ue|d juBWUOJIAUT Y3 Ul S| SJD3ISISY MSIY | 9yl wed)l JuswaoaSeuew 33el10diod je asied | 493151894 ys1 e ulejuiew jou op diysisaulied 19151834
V/N | ut papnjoul diyssaulied juedijiusis Ajuo ay | o1 pasude sey $S)7g4 JaSeuely dnod syl | yoea 4oy S4921jo  9(qisuodsas  dyr 4 | dsu diysiauped
SJomawel) JuswaSeuew | 'SDAI303[GO pue Swie Sl SpIeMO} 91NIIIU0D
2ouewuopad syl jo ued se pappaqusa | pue Asuow Joj anjea apiaoid 01 anuiuod
"BII91I4O JUBWSSAsSSe pasinbas | aq  |im  sdiysiouped  juedyiu8is  jo | sdiysioulried paysiies aue Asyy aouesnsse
9Yl SsaJppe ydiym sjuswaduelle MIIADJ | dduewJ0Iad pue S1S0D ‘SySII 1Byl 94nNSud | padnpaJ SI AUyl ‘suiaquaw Ag sdiysisunied 9ouew.opad
V/N | @yl 4ad se passasse aq ||IM dduew.oiad | 01 paaude sey $SI7g4 Ja8euey dnodg sy | Juedyiudis JOo MalAas |enuue ue Inoyupn | diysisulied Sulionuoln
uondy jo a1ppdn

91k pa9.43y

/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 77



10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

7102/20/6T

'SWJ04 2TOZ-TTOT 3Y3 40 3d19334
Jo} 9doeld ul Ind S| swidss Suoyuow
1SNgoJ aJow e jeyy pasJde si 3 ‘SWJo 3y}
JO SWOS JO uJN}DJ-UOU Y3} 03} PIINGLIIUOD
SIy} 2404349y} pue TT0g Aey ul aoejd 3003
SUOI3D9]9 JaqUIdIA ‘DSNJXd Uk jou ysnoyyy

suolnpoesues) Aped pale@s 3ulysigeiss
JO SpoOylaw SAIIBUIS}E  SuINIdJ  uou
Aue Jo juans ayy ul “Ajpdwoud siapuiwal
anss| AJessadau auaym pue ‘ZT/TTOC
JO} SIAQUWIBIA WOJ} SWJIO} dJNSO|ISIP
}0 1d19234 3y} J0o3IUOW SSIIAISS 93es0du0)
-198euelp  dnousp  pue  jueIUNOIDY
[edpulld  9Yyr  1BYl  puswWwWOolBL |

suojjoesuely Aied pailejas siaquisip
J0 24nso|dsip 03 spJesads ul uopyisod s, [1uno)
3y} 109|494 Aj@1e4ndoE J0U AW ,SIUNOJDY
JO 1UBWIS1E]S, [ENUUE 3Y] 1BY] S B S| aJay |

suJniaJl a4nsojasig

suonoesuel] Ayied paje|ay

z107/€0/1€

‘210z Adbnupf uy
paidopp uoisian ay1 ul paipiodiodul a1am
sabupbys asayy ‘upjd Aunuipuoy ssauisng
ayl Jo ysaifas ayi Jo 1upd sp passasspai
alam ddLWN 9yl :9/€T 1o so a1pdn

‘Aj3uip10doe papuswe
9q |m ueid ayr pue oayd Aleal,
e y3nouys sadueyd aa4de |[IM | |ND "UOISIADI
ue|d ay3 jo ued se pauoie 3ulaq si SIYL

‘s921puadde ay3 ul
pa109|}24 pue wea] Juswaseue ddg ay:
Aq paa43e aq uayl pjnoys sadLlN 03 apew
so8ueys Auy  "BlSID 1UDISISUOD pue
salji4olud 91e40dU0d UO PISeq paulwexd
-94 2Je suJn1aJd QdLA 1Byl puswwodal |

‘uonejusws|dwi s,uejd ayy uodn
8uisnooy 1snl yum ueyy Jayies elpaw ayl
pue d11gnd ay3 01  pudyap 03 Suindwane ul
paisem aq Aew swi a|genjeA ‘aiowuayung
*JSM 1€ $221A49s Suidey oljgnd ssow passasd
pJey o1 Ajiasn[ 03 ||13s J9pJey pue aAaiyde 0}
}ndiyip aq Aew uejd ayj jo uonejuawa|dwi
‘pa8us||eyoun Y| 3B SIIUBID|O0} JUILIND §|

salJoud
uondnusiq 9|qeJs|0L
JO  poldd  wnuwixep

"Janouiny o3 payul|
SI Y2IYym JUNOWD UIDII3I D JD3G [[IM [12UN0)
ay1 ybnoyyp 3iqoinsul JON SI S 3yl
Sb dWaYas uim||ag ayl 4apun Ajddo o3 anoy
[[IM [12UN0) 3Y] UAY] JUIPIIUI UD 313M 313Y]
J1 “Ajddp jou pjnom uoisuaixa uoirdniiaiul
ssaujsng ssa20b fo [pluap 3yl 3ynsal b Sy
'siainsul Aub yum Aiddp jjim 0s suoisnjoxa

‘A11j1q1ssod a10wal e S| S1Y) ‘UoI1e}S JOMOd
Je3d|danN ulod AspjuiH ay3 Jo Ajwixoud ayi
USAID ‘|lJd palels e se ,uolleulweluod,
apnpul 01 Adjjod 8yr jo swial |yl
puaix2 0} apew ag p|noys siuswasuele
‘paJan0d 10U SI |1DUNO) 3y} J| ‘uondnusip
SsauIsng 1o} uoseaJ e Se uolleulweluo),
4O} PaJaA0D SI |1DUNOD 3Y} Jeyl Jaunsul

"}|NS3J e Se SSO| |eloueUly

uony jo
91k pa9.43y

a1ppdn
/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 78



10} 2213081 JO

'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

9p0D V4dID Y} pUB SI0}PNY |BUJDIU| JO SINUISU| DY} JO HJOMIWEIS SIVNIOEIJ [BUOISSD404d |EUIDIU| 3Y} Ym A|dwod 0} paia|dwod Si 3JoM dy¥S

pup uondNpul apinoid 03 pup WpaJisuipw
03 juawaiinbai a3y :9/cT I sb 3wpdn

"YT/€10¢ 404 ss9204d Suiuueld
9y} Ul UuoISN[dUl JO} P3JIPISUOD 3G ||IM
siy3 sueid 92IAISS JO SwII) U] ‘spodal
9911WWOod Ul paJapIsuod 3q ued Ayajes
Allunwwod moy pue a2110e4d Ul paJaAIRP

[eID0S-13UB  ‘J3PJOSIP  ‘DWIID  3JpPe} 03
UOI30E pue UoI1BJaPISUOD dpinosd 03 Syl
's9ssa204d Asanl@p/ uonejusws|dwi pue
s9ssa204d  21893e43S  ‘sassad04d  Supjew
-uolsIap ‘sassadoud dAIeJISIUIWPE
{SIpnjpul pue seale IJIAISS  |IDUNOD
[|e ssoJoe pasiudodal si Alajes Allunwwo)

‘Supjew uoisiap Sulnp paJapisuod

'suois1ap 3upel
Uaym sJagquiaw pue
SJ9014j0 03 pajuasald
siaded ul paJapisuod
Aliny 30U s pue JSM 1e
Suluue|d 321A43S UIYIM
pappaqwa Ajnj 3ou

2T0Z/90/0€ | SI SIYyl MOy M3IASJ 01 paau [|IM 3AA | - Sulweasis ulew, eyl pusawwodal || aq jou Aew suonedljdwi Ayojes Aylunwwo) | st Alejes Anunwwo)
MoJaq 33s :9/<T 1o sp aippdn
‘saluow 90TS A9UIH 3y} jo }nsal
e se s)sod mau 3y} Joj swiy ul pajepdn "3sl4e paau ay3 pjnoys Ainp Jivy3 ‘|lesieadde
9Q 01 paau ||IM |eldlew 1udW1INIRY [g | 28Jeydsip 01 d|ge ale pue Apjigisuodsal e dn pamoj|o}
JI3Y} JO aleme aJe jjels JO Siaquiaw Jo uolnpul 1e
‘s|esieadde
||e 2Jnsud o0} |esiesdde 1 pawJuOd paJanod  Ajjedizewoline
|[enuue 1e asn o1 si98euew aul| Joj apind
si Alojes Ajlunwwo) jo Suipueisispun 10U S| Iy JapJosiq
apinoud pue |euslew |esiesddy 21epdn @
ue 1eyl puy (jeralew Sujuie) 0} ssadde awilI) Y1 Jo /T uo13I3S
ASPJUIH J0y) JJe1S | DARY 01 JJR1S ||Y) “}JB1S JO SIaqWaW Mau ‘[12UN0) 3Y3 UIYUM pappaqua | 01 Aljiqisuodsal
M3U 1nJ2as 0} |esodoud 8yl Jo junodde | Joj ss9doid Sululesl pue uoldnpul Byl | Jo poolsiapun A|ny jou S 10y JdpJosiq | S,|enplalpul ayl
9)el 031 }JB1S Mau JOoj |eld3ew apnjpul 0} | Jo Jed 1e papnpul si Ayajes Ajlunwwo) | g sw) 3yl 4o /T u0133S 01 Ajljigisuodsal | pue Alajes Ajunwwo)
2102/v0/0¢€ | so8exoed Suiuiesy pue uoinpu| alepdn [ | JO MIIAJSAO UB  1BY} PUSWWOIAS | | S|ENPIAIPUl Yl 1BYl XS4 B S| 2J9YL | 01 uolPhposul Uy
Apdjes Aunwwo)
ZT/T10C 40f sassaoroid
umopasofd ayy Jo bd sob uaxybliapuUn
buiaq s1 sisaidjul Jo  SuoIIDID[IAP
01 uosubdwod pup suinjai Aupd paipjay 'SJuNoJ2e 3y} 01 sajou
Jo uonaajod ayy :9/€r 1o so a1opdn | Byl ul paso|asip pue pasojdxa aq p|noys
uondy jo a1ppdn

91k pa9.43y

/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

payIuap| sty

puno4 ssauyeam

Page 79



'S9|e A\ pUE pue|Su3 Ul 1pNY |eulaly|

10} 92130814 4O 9POD Y4dID Y} pue SIOHPNY [BUJSIU| JO DINUISU| BY} 4O YJOMBWEI] SII[30BIJ |BUOISSDJO0Id [BUIDIU| DY} YHUM Ajdwod 03 pa1ajdwod S| YoM dy S

zroz/et/te

‘SIY1 sSaJppe 0}
dn 195 uaaq sey dnouo SuPJOA V PR3y

HULCIRI=RTITREYY
J0} Jossasse juapuadapul pasiugodas |Dd
e 01 paniwqns ag pjnoys siyy paisjdwod
39JUO pue pJepuels A1undas eyeq AJisnpul
pie) juawAed 8yl yum duejdwod
JI9Yl aulwJalap djdy [Im SIYl °|1ouno)
9y} Joj 3Jleuuolsanb  JUBWISSISSY-49S
piepuels Aj4ndas eleq [Dd e s939|dwod
Jo8euel\ S| 9yl 1Y} puUSWIWOIDI |

*JN220 0} SEM JUdPIdUl SNOLIDS
e JI sjuswAed pied ssaooud 03 Jaylad03ye
Aljige |y 3so| p|nod |1PUNO) 3y} 1Byl S
S 3s93ed48 Byl "4ndd0 yoeauq Auundass e
p|noys ueq 8yl WOJ4 SdUI} |BUOIIDESURI]
Jnaul p|nNoad [12Uno) Byl eyl XSl e sI aJ4ayl uolssiwqgns ssa Dd

doueldwo) Aiole|nSay swaisAs uonew.oju|

"OVd AHunwwo) ayi pun fND 10 apow
bulaq a4p saippdn ipinbay “ffois mau Jof
syabd uoianpul 3yl ul papnjaul bulaq si pup
Hfbis || 03 paipIN2IID US3G SLY 3| “LIND PUb
J13pJoH oljofriod ay1 pub JND Aq panoiddp
uaaq soy 1oyl 13fp3| b Jo uononpoid
ayl Aq 15w aiam s|pldipow [puolowoid

"JUBWUOJIAUS |BJ0| BY3}
syaye A[9siaApe eyl Jnolneyaq Jayio
Aue pue asnsjw oueisgns ‘4nolreyaq

uony jo
91k pa9.43y

a1ppdn
/ uondy pasusy sjuawadeueln

UOoIOY PaPUIWIWIOIY

paynuap| ysiy punoy ssauyeam

Page 80



Control Assurance Definitions Appendix B

. .
| am able to offer comprehensive assurance as the areas reviewed were found to be

Comprehensive adequately controlled. Internal controls are in place and operating effectively and risks
against the achievement of objectives are well managed.

.
| am able to offer reasonable assurance as most of the areas reviewed were found to be
Reasonable adequately controlled. Generally risks are well managed but some systems require the

introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives.

| am able to offer Partial assurance in relation to the areas reviewed and the controls
Partial found to be in place. Some key risks are not well managed and systems require the
introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives.

| am not able to offer any assurance. The areas reviewed were found to be inadequately
None controlled. Risks are not well managed and systems require the introduction or
improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives.

Categorisation Of Recommendations

When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the recommendation is to
their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the risks identified for the service but scored at a
corporate level and the priority assigned to the recommendation. No timeframes have been applied to each Priority as
implementation will depend on several factors, however, the definitions imply the importance.

Priority 5: Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the unit’s business processes and require the immediate
attention of management.

Priority 4: Important findings that need to be resolved by management.
Priority 3: The accuracy of records is at risk and requires attention.
Priority 2: Minor control issues have been identified which nevertheless need to be addressed.

Priority 1: Administrative errors identified that should be corrected. Simple, no-cost measures would serve to enhance an
existing control.

Definitions of Risk

Risk Reporting Implications

Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement can be made.

Medium |Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility.

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior

High
management.

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both senior

Very High management and the Audit Committee.
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AGENDA ITEM 13

REPORT NUMBER  WSC 86/12

PRESENTED BY

DATE

GRAHAM CARNE, GROUP MANAGER — FINANCE & CENTRAL
SUPPORT SERVICES

25 JUNE 2012

ANNUAL REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT

1.1.

2.1

2.2.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform the Audit Committee of the review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit, as
delivered through SWAP (South West Audit Partnership) during 2011/12.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Audit Committee notes the findings of the review in order to fulfil the accounts and
audit regulations, and also;

To conclude that the findings of the review are that the system of internal audit is effective.

RISK ASSESSMENT

Risk Matrix

Description Likelihood | Impact | Overall

The council fails to maintain an adequate system of internal
control, monitored and informed my internal audit v 1 4
The council has in place suitable internal audit arrangements

The scoring of the risks identified in the above table has been based on the scoring matrix.
Each risk has been assessed and scored both before the mitigation measurers have been
actioned and after they have.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) is a partnership that provides the Internal Audit
service to all of the six Somerset authorities, Dorset County Council, Weymouth and
Portland Borough Council, West Dorset District Council, Forest of Dean District Council,
East Devon District Council and Wiltshire Council as well as a number of related bodies
such as the Somerset Waste Partnership.

Internal audit forms a part of the Corporate Governance and Internal Control Framework
that provides accountability to stakeholders. The opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control framework forms a part of the evidence used
in preparing the corporate Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2011-12, which will be
published as part of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in September 2012.

There is a requirement under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2006 for authorities to review the effectiveness of their system of
internal audit once a year and for the findings of the review to be considered by a
committee such as the Audit Committee as a part of the consideration of the system of
internal control. This review has to be carried out by someone independent of SWAP.
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4.5.

4.6.

4.6.1.

4.6.2.

Compliance with CIPFA Code
The 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit sets out how an internal audit function
should be fulfilled. The main focus is the internal audit service itself, but the Code does also
refer to the wider elements of the “system of internal audit”, including the role of an Audit
Committee. The Code covers:

* scope and terms of reference of internal audit

* independence

« ethics and competence

* audit committees

* relationships

« staffing

* audit strategy and planning

» how audit work is undertaken

* due professional care

* reporting

» performance, quality and effectiveness.

SWAP signs-up to all aspects of the Code through the Audit Charter, which is reviewed by
the Audit Committee on an annual basis.

The Review of SWAP

The Group Manager (Finance & Central Support Services) — The Council’'s Section 151
Officer — has undertaken the review on behalf of West Somerset Council. The findings
have been reported to Corporate Management Team as part of the overall evaluation and
supporting evidence for the Annual Governance Statement. It was found that overall the
Audit team performed well and that this view was supported by the comments of external
auditors — their triennial review undertaken in March 2010 is not appended to this report but
is available via this link — http://www.westsomersetonline.gov.uk/getattachment/Council---
Democracy/Council-Meetings/Audit-Committee-Meetings/Audit-Committee---28-June-
2010/1tem-7-Appendix.pdf.aspx — and client satisfaction questionnaires, gathered following
the conclusion of audits.

The Audit Commission’s findings were (page 8 of the triennial review): -

“During our review we found that SWAP complies in general with the CIPFA Code, and we
can rely on their work for the purposes of our external audit. There were some departures
from the Code, but these are not serious in nature and will not require significant work to
ensure full compliance in the short term. Details of the work required to achieve full
compliance are set out in the following sections of the report.”

The table below shows some of the overall performance of the service during the year
compared to the two previous years:

Performance 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Measure

Audits completed in | 9outof 14 | 13 out of | 26 out of 29 | 26 out of 27 24 out of 26
year compared to (64%), 2 14 (93%) | (90%) (96%) (92%)™
plan (all at least to additional
final draft stage) * reviews

completed

during the

year.
Managed audits 9outof9 2outof2 | 9outof9 6 out of 6 5 out of 5
completed in year (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) — (1009%)
compared with plan moved to

cycle

Cost of audit £85,290 £85,290 £85,290 £76,890 £68,300
service to WSC
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4.7.

5.1.

5.2

5.3.

5.4.

6.1.

6.2.

Value for Money — No private | No private | SWAP = SWAP = SWAP =
average cost of sector data | sector £280 £280 £287
audit day compared | available data Private Private Private
to private sector available | Sector = Sector = Sector
(benchmarking) £320 £320 varies?
SWAP outturn on Budget Budget Budget £0 Budget Budget
spend compared to | £(27,670) | £(31,640) | Actual £(48,943) £(26,830)
budget — (brackets | Actual Actual £(76,117) Actual Actual
i2ndicate net income) | £(47,819) | £(11,763) £(142,928) £(99,256)
Customer No No 95% (based | 83% (based | 83% (based
Satisfaction * feedback feedback | on2 on8 on 15
provided provided responses) responses responses
by WSC by WSC out of 16 out of 24
sent) sent)

1. The remaining 2 audits were in-progress at the end of March 2012.
2. Daily rates obtained from private sector audit providers varies to the degree that it is
unfortunately not a useful benchmark.

Opinion

It is the opinion of the Group Manager — Finance and Central Support and the Corporate

Governance Group that the system of internal audit is effective.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None — the costs of internal audit are fully budgeted in 2011/12. The audit fee in 2011/12
was 20% lower than the original agreed fee in 2010/11 following a reduction in the number
of days purchased from the partnership.

SWAP is undertaking two pieces of work that may have a bearing on the review of

effectiveness in the future; firstly there is a quality assessment review being undertaken by
the Devon Audit Partnership. The purpose of this review is to assess the effectiveness of

the service, identify opportunities for improvement and to provide an opinion on compliance
with Standards.

The second initiative is a review of the Partnership’s governance structure. The need to
change the current arrangements has been accepted by the Management and Partnership
Boards, and there is a project underway to identify improvements to the present
governance model, including arrangements for decision-making, majority voting and
accountability of officers.

As members of the Partnership Board, West Somerset’s representatives will be part of the
decision-making process to move to a new governance structure for SWAP.

SECTION 151 OFFICER COMMENTS

It is the opinion of the Council’'s Section 151 Officer and the Corporate Governance Group
(which is the three Statutory Officers and the two other Group Managers that make up the
Management Team) that the system of internal audit is effective.

It is important that an adequate internal audit service is maintained, to prevent and prevent
and detect fraud, irregularity and weaknesses in control. The Audit Committee
recommended in March 2010, and Cabinet subsequently approved the continuation of the
council’s membership of SWAP. Whilst this is for a 5 year period, it is important that the
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7.1.

8.1.

9.1.

10.

10.1.

11.

11.1.

12.

12.1.

council ensures it receives value for money from this arrangement; annual reviews such as
this help to inform that decision, plus we have negotiated the 20% reduction, contributing to
our savings target whilst maintaining the service.

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

CONSULTATION IMPLICATIONS

The proposed changes were all discussed initially with the staff working at the VIIC.

ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly in this report.

REPORT TO THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE TO BE HELD ON 25 JUNE 2012.

CONTACT OFFICER: GRAHAM CARNE
TEL. NO.DIRECT LINE: 01984 635253
EMAIL: GCARNE@WESTSOMERSET.GOV.UK
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AGENDA ITEM 14

Explanatory Foreword

Introduction to West Somerset

Bordering the Bristol Channel, West Somerset benefits from some of the most scenic
landscape in England. Two thirds of Exmoor National Park lies within its boundary, as do
the Quantock Hills; an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Large amounts of both areas
are designated sites of special scientific interest due of their value to wildlife.

Whilst West Somerset covers a large area (740 square kilometres), just 35,000 people
share it with the wildlife, making West Somerset one of the most sparsely populated
districts in England. Half of those people live along the narrow coastal strip in the
settlements of Minehead, Watchet and Williton. The remainder live in small villages and
hamlets dispersed throughout the district and the town of Dulverton situated in the
Exmoor National Park.

The economy of West Somerset is heavily dependant upon tourism and during the peak
season, the population of the district swells considerably with the influx of many
hundreds of thousands of visitors.

According to the Office of National Statistics’ publication ‘Older People’s Day 2011’, in
2010 West Somerset had the highest median age in the UK at 52.7 years 2010. 30% of
its population is over 65, being one of only 4 such areas in the UK.

This diverse profile of service users gives West Somerset Council an almost unique
customer base. As it develops services over time, the council continuously needs to
take account of this special blend of residents and visitors.

The Council employs 80 full-time equivalent staff that work together with 28 Councillors,
many newly elected in May 2011, to deliver a wide range of services to people in West
Somerset. West Somerset District Council currently collaborates with a variety of
organisations to ensure services are delivered as efficiently as possible. The number of
partnerships and contracted services in operation mean the council is an example of a
‘commissioning’ organisation, that relies on a central core of officers to coordinate and
monitor services. Services delivered in this way include: -

Waste collection and recycling

Street Cleansing

Public convenience cleaning

Housing benefit processing

Legal services

Tourist information

Harbour and marina operations

Strategic Housing services

Internal Audit

Private Sector Housing and Environmental Health
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An explanation of which statements follow, their purpose and the relationship
between them

Movement In Reserves Statement (Page X)

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page X)

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be
funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Balance Sheet (Page X)

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority.

Cash Flow Statement (Page X)

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Pages XX)

The notes provide more information on some of the figures within the main statements
listed above. They also include the accounting policies, which guide the treatment of
income and expenditure and disclosures relating to the assets and liabilities of the
council.

Service Expenditure compared to the budget

Service Budget £m Actual Spend £m
Resources 1,207,007 982,161
Housing and Economy 659,242 657,881
Corporate Director 1,119,634 1,069,630
Environment and Community 1,898,898 1,886,928
Total 4,884,781 4,596,600
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A more detailed breakdown of the income and expenditure is shown in Note XX on page
XX.

Pensions

In accordance with financial reporting standards, West Somerset District Council has to
disclose its long-term liability to pay retirement benefits to its current and former
employees. This liability will eventually be discharged through increased contributions,
as calculated by the Pension Scheme’s Actuary. Statutory arrangements for funding this
shortfall means that the Council’s own financial position is not weakened by the
disclosure. The liability that the Council recognises is £16.994m as shown in the Balance
Sheet on page XX.

Any material and unusual charge or credit in the accounts

During 2011/12 an exercise was undertaken in relation to the value of the Authority’s
Information Technology (IT) assets. Historically during the implementation of major IT
projects additional costs had been capitalised as part of the overall project and therefore
included in the value of the asset carried within the Balance Sheet. Results of this
exercise have concluded that an amount of £0.598m has been removed from the value
of IT assets resulting in an impairment charge being made in 2011/12 within the
Statement of Accounts.

Council Borrowing
The Council currently has one loan of £3.50m, which is owed to the Public Works Loans
Board. This is repayable in February 2014.

Sources of funds to finance capital

The council retains residual useable capital receipts from the sale of Vulcan Road Car
Park in 2010 which, combined with a modest capital programme designed to support the
existing estate and infrastructure, should support the council’s asset management plan
for the next three years. Within the capital strategy and asset management plan is the
planned sale of surplus council assets, notably a temporary coach park on Seaward
Way in Minehead. Additional capital receipts will be used to fund ongoing capital
expenditure, including any requests to capitalise revenue costs.

Significant provisions or contingencies and material write-offs
There have been no significant provisions, contingencies or material write-offs during
2011/12.

Any material events after the reporting date
There have been no material events to report after the reporting date.

The impact of the current economic climate on the authority and the services it
provides

Reduction in government grant / forecast balances

The council’s financial support from Central Government (known as the ‘Formula Grant’)
is set to fall again in 2013/14, but the amount of the reduction is presently unknown and
unlikely to be released until November 2012 at the earliest. We are anticipating a 7.5%
reduction but there is some risk that this could be higher — we are taking a prudent view
that the New Homes Bonus will compensate for any further reduction in grant, and
therefore not be ‘a bonus’ until we know the true level of Formula Grant.
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The council has used reserves to support its budget for 2011/12 and 2012/13, to the
order of £250,000 and £600,000 respectively. This cannot continue as ongoing
expenditure is being currently financed by one-off support. The council will need to
deliver significant cuts or increases in income in its next budget, in order to be
sustainable in the future.

The Cabinet approved a ‘budget strategy’ in April 2012 that includes the possibility of a
referendum on levels of council tax, combined with significant levels of service reduction
designed to close the shortfall in funding that the council is experiencing. As the
‘strategy’ develops, we will keep the public informed through our council meetings.

Major Changes During 2011/12

One of the most significant processes the council undertook during the year was to
consider in its role as planning authority, permission for site preparation works relating to
a potential new Nuclear power station to commence at Hinkley Point near Stogursey.

At a meeting of the Planning Committee, which was held in public in July 2011,
permission was granted for the works, which are expected to take 2 years to complete.
As part of the permission, a planning mitigation payment totaling £32.0m will be paid to a
number of organisations, principally West Somerset Council but also Sedgemoor District
Council, Somerset County Council, Devon Fire and Rescue Services and Avon &
Somerset Police Constabulary, to offset the impact of the work and allow the bodies to
cope with the additional workloads directly created by the project. Payments have also
been agreed for local colleges and tourist information centers to capitalise on the
opportunities afforded by such a large-scale development.

A planning application for the physical reactors has been lodged with the Planning
Inspectorate; West Somerset Council will not be the authority that approves or rejects
the application, but the Council is actively seeking to ensure that the impact on local
communities by such a project is adequately mitigated.

Revenue Income and Spending in 2011/12
XXXX

Capital Income and Spending in 2011/12

Our capital expenditure and capital financing note on page XX shows the income and
expenditure transactions we make when we —

e Buy or improve property, plant and equipment

e Finance revenue expenditure from capital under government rules, and

e Use a combination of capital receipts and borrowing to pay for it

The significant projects delivered during 2011/12 included: -

e An updated footbridge over the West Somerset Railway at Watchet to replace the
original Victorian bridge that had fallen into disrepair

e Almost £250,000 of grants to help residents with disabilities to stay in their own
homes through aids and adaptations

e Extension of the council’s Recycling service and the provision of wheeled bins
throughout the district of West Somerset
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e A new free parking area for coaches in Minehead, adjacent to the railway terminus
and funded from contributions from Morrison’s Supermarket

Future Developments
XXXX

Further Information

Further information about these accounts is available from: Corporate Finance, West
District Somerset Council, West Somerset House, Killick Way, Williton, Somerset, TA4
4QA. Email: customerservices@westsomerset.gov.uk

The rights of interested persons to view the accounts are statutorily defined and the
dates on which the accounts are available for inspection are advertised in the local press
and on the Council’s website.

For the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts the inspection period commences on XXXXXX.
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Movement In Reserves Statement

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority,
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true
economic cost of providing the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts
required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. The Net
Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund
Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from
earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.

Fund Reserves
Capital Receipts
Reserve
Capital Grants
Unapplied
Total Usable
Reserves
Total Authority
Reserves

el
c
S5 O
L o
I
S(G
o ©
c m
[}
V]

Earmarked General
Unusable Reserves

th
o
(=]
o
th
(@]
o
o
th
o
o
o

£000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2010 432 1,011 9,515 0 10,958 (9,005) 1,953

Movement in Reserves during 2010/11

Surplus (or deficit) on the provision of services 547 547 547
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7 (7 2,791 2,784
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 540 0 0 0 540 2,791 3,331

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis

under regulations 8 15 (8,063) 524  (7,524) 7,524 0
Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked

Reserves 555 0 (8,063) 524 (6,984) 10,315 3,331
Transfers to /(from) Earmarked Reserves 9 (56) 56 0 0
Increase/Decrease in 2010/11 499 56 (8,063) 524  (6,984) 10,315 3,331
Balance at 31 March 2011 Carried forward 931 1,067 1,452 524 3,974 1,310 5,284

Movement in Reserves during 2011/12

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (606) (606) (606)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 (4,254) (4,254)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (606) 0 0 0 (606) (4,254) (4,860)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis

under regulations 8 1,728 59 (260) 1,527 (1,527) 0
Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked

Reserves 1,122 0 59 (260) 921 (5,781) (4,860)
Transfers to /(from) Earmarked Reserves 9 (834) 834

Increase/Decrease in 2011/12 288 834 59 (260) 921 (5,781) (4,860)
Balance at 31 March 2012 Carried forward 1,219 1,901 1,511 264 4,895 (4,471) 424
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.
Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different
from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2010/11 2011/12
o o
=] o =] o
E 2 2 E 2 2
- - - S -
L £ o Ll £ o
2 2 i 2 2 i
e e 3] e e 5]
o o z o O z
£000 £000 £000 £00 £000
3,916 (3,551) 365 Central Services to the Public 3,895 (3,469) 426
809 (103) 706 Cultural & Related Services 770 (534) 236
2,312 (367) 1,945 Environmental & Regulatory Services 2,539 (412) 2,127
853 (748) 105 Highways and Transport Services 359 (548) (189)
14,165 (13,873) 292 Other Housing Services 14,812 (14,196) 616
1,911  (1,400) 511 Planning Services 1,883  (1,605) 278
1,432 0 1,432 Corporate and Democratic Core 1,361 (24) 1,337
0 0 0 Non Distributed Costs 0 0 0
260 (2,521) (2,261) Exceptional Items of Income and Expenditure 151 0 151
25,658 (22,563) 3,095 Costs of Services 25,770 (20,788) 4,982
766 766 Other Operating Expenditure 10 762 762
0 (50) (50) Other Capital Income 0
2,364 (97) 2,267 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 11 473 (94) 379
(6,625) (6,625) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 12 (5,517) (5,517)
(547) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 606
(10) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of fixed assets 22 0
7 Other Movements 0
(2,776) Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension assets/liabilities 22 4,254
(2,779) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 4,254
(3,326) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 4,860
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Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use
(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt). The second category of reserves, are those that the authority is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide
services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in
Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations’.

31 March 2011 31 March 2012
£000 £000
16,120 Property, Plant & Equipment 13 15,266
4,730 Investment Properties 15 2,780
Intangible assets
0 Assets Held for Sale 17 0
23 Long-term Debtors 18 21
20,873 Long Term Asset 18,067
213 Asset Held for Sale 17 2,046
1,172 Short Term Debtors 19 1,389
837 Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 1,860
2,222 Current Assets 5,295
(1,506) Short Term Creditors 21 (2,200)
(253) Provisions 22 (6)
(1,759) Current Liabilities (2,206)
(3,506) Long Term Creditors 23 (3,506)
(12,340) Other Long Term Liabilities 23 (16,994)
(206) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 23 (232)
(16,052) Long Term Liabilities (20,732)
5,284 Net Assets 424
(3,974) Usable Reserves (4,895)
(1,310) Unusable reserves 24 4,471
(5,284) Total Reserves (424)
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Collection Fund

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities
to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority
in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of
council tax and non-domestic rates.

2010/11
£000
Income
(7,152) Business Rates (9,537)
(18,212) Council Tax (18,361)
(3,238) Council Tax Benefits : Transfer from General Fund (3,166)
(28,602) Total Income (31,064)

Expenditure
Precepts and Demand:

15,086 - Somerset County Council 15,154
2,468 - Avon and Somerset Police Authority 2,479
1,054 - Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority 1,059
1,952 - West Somerset District Council 1,961

711 - Parish Councils 776

Business Rates
7,042 - Payment to National Pool 9,452
75 - Costs of Collection 75

Bad and doubtful debts/appeals
55 - Write offs - Council Tax / NNDR 26
(20) - (Decrease)/Increase in provision for bad debts - Council Tax NNDR 40

Distribution of Council Tax element of surplus on fund:

44 - Somerset County Council 116

7 - Avon and Somerset Police Authority 19

3 - Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 8

8 - West Somerset District Council 20
28,485 Total Expenditure 31,185
(117) Deficit / (Surplus) for the year 121
(212) (Surplus) / Deficit brought forward (329)
(329) (Surplus) / Deficit carried forward (208)
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AGENDA ITEM 15

REPORT NUMBER  WSC 85/12

CLLR KATE KRAVIS, LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES &
CENTRAL SUPPORT

DATE 25 JUNE 2012

PRESENTED BY

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011/12

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1.  The Audit Committee is asked to review the Annual Governance Statement prior to its
signature by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. Members of the Audit Committee are asked to consider the content of and approve the
Annual Governance Statement, as appended (Appendix A).

3. RISK ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE)
Risk Matrix

Description Likelihood Impact Overall
None in respect of this report

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1.  The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 came into force on 31 March 2011.
This means that they apply to the preparation, approval and audit of statements of accounts
prepared in respect of the year ending 31 March 2011 and later years.

4.2. Regulation 4 reads as follows —
The relevant body is responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the body is
adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal control which
facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which includes arrangements
for the management of risk.

(2) The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of
its system of internal control.
(3) The findings of the review referred to in paragraph (2) must be considered—
(a)in the case of a larger relevant body, by the members of the body meeting as a
whole or by a committee, and
(b)in the case of a smaller relevant body, by the members of the body meeting as a
whole, and following the review, the body or committee must approve an annual
governance statement, prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to
internal control.
(4) The relevant body must ensure that the statement referred to in paragraph (3)
accompanies —
(a)any statement of accounts it is obliged to prepare in accordance with regulation 7,
or
(b)any accounting statement it is obliged to prepare in accordance with regulation 12.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

5.1.

In June 2009, CIPFA launched its Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Public Service Organisations, which recommended that organisations benchmark their
existing arrangements and report publicly on compliance. Further, in 2010 CIPFA issued
its Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officers (CFO) in Local Government, which
applies the principles and roles in the 2009 Statement to local government.

Following extensive research and consultation, the CIPFA / SOLACE Joint Working Group
issued Delivering Good Governance in Local Governance: Framework and accompanying
guidance. The principles and standards set out in the Framework are aimed at helping
local authorities to develop and maintain their own codes of governance and discharge their
accountability for the proper conduct of business.

Good governance means:

1. Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and
creating and implementing a vision for the local area

2. Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly
defined functions and roles

3. Promoting the values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance
through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour

4. Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and
managing risk

5. Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective

6. Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

The Framework urges local authorities to test their structures against these principles by:
* Reviewing their existing governance arrangements against the Framework

» Developing and maintaining an up to date local code of governance including
arrangements for ensuring its ongoing application and effectiveness

 Preparing a governance statement in order to report publicly on the extent to which they
comply with their own code on an annual basis, including how they have monitored the
effectiveness of their annual governance arrangements in the year, and on any planned
changes in the coming period.

The local code is incorporated into West Somerset Council’s Annual Governance
Statement that is attached to this report at Appendix A.

In March 2010, CIPFA developed an application note to help local authorities apply the
Statement under the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government framework. The
note shows: -
¢ How the governance requirements which support the principles in the CFO
statement build on the governance requirements that need to be reflected in an
authority’s local code set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework and guidance note
e How the annual governance statement can reflect compliance with the CFO
statement for reporting purposes

In implementing the ‘comply or explain’ concept, CIPFA recommends that organistions
report publicly on compliance.

The annual review of internal audit activity will also assist the Committee in assessing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None in respect of this report.

Page 98



6. SECTION 151 OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1. In addition to the notes above, the Annual Governance Statement has been reviewed by
the Corporate Management Team and the three statutory officers of the council, being the
Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), Monitoring Officer (Corporate Director) and Section
151 Officer (Group Manager — Resources).

7. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1.  None directly in respect of this report.

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1.  None directly in respect of this report.

9. CONSULTATION IMPLICATIONS

9.1. None directly in respect of this report.

10. ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

10.1. None directly in respect of this report.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

11.1. None directly in respect of this report.

12. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1. None directly in respect of this report.

REPORT TO THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE TO BE HELD ON 25 JUNE 2012

CONTACT OFFICER: GRAHAM CARNE
TEL. NO.DIRECT LINE: 01984 635253
EMAIL: GCARNE@WESTSOMERSET.GOV.UK
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APPENDIX A

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of responsibility

West Somerset Council (WSC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.

WSC also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, WSC is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of
risk.

WSC has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code can be obtained on request.

This statement explains how WSC has complied with the code and also meets the
requirements of regulation 4 (2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as
amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)(England) Regulations 2006 in
relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and
values by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through
which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority
to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of WSC'’s policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at WSC for the year ended 31 March
20121 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

The governance framework

The key elements of WSC's governance arrangements are outlined in the Local
Code of Corporate Governance. The main areas and the key evidence for delivery
are as follows:
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Core Principle 1: focusing on the purpose of West Somerset District Council
and on outcomes for the community and with partners creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;

e The Corporate Plan sets out the purpose and Vvision for West Somerset
Council_and was updated in 2011/12 to cover the period to March 2015

o hocfusinlnoble Commmonlec Stmtncn o cnmennth boine cntioshod

Local Strategic Partnership; it will develop outcomes for the benefit of the
wider communities in West Somerset
e Service Planning has_further improved further-during 20116/124, and these
the plans are clearly linked to the Corporate Plan and Medium-Term Financial
Plan. Fhey-Plans identify the performance measures and targets that will be
used to ensure the services achieve their agreed objectives

o Improvementsto-pPerformance monitoring have-beenimplemented-to-gives
cost, performance and customer satisfaction indicators for key council
services-

e The council approved a treasury management strategy and an annual
investment strategy during the year, which included-its prudential indicators,
in accordance with the CIPFA code

e The Council was instrumental in securing significant developer’s financial
contributions relating to site preparation works at Hinkley Point in the north-
east of the district

Core Principle 2: Mmembers and Osefficers work together to achieve a common
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles:

e The roles and responsibilities of the Cabinet, Scrutiny Committee, Members
in general and senior officers are clearly set out within the council’s
constitution

e The Council’'s Chief Financial Officer is a Group Manager with responsibility
for the finance team, a member of the Corporate Management team and
reports directly to the Chief Executive.

e The Chief Financial Officer is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and is responsible for maintaining a robust system of
internal control

e The three statutory officers (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and
Chief Financial Officer) meet every week as part of the Management Team

e Regular weekly meetings between the Leader and Chief Executive in order to
maintain a shared understanding of roles and objectives

o Portfolio Holders meet at least monthly with their appropriate lead officers to
discuss current and future issues affecting the services and the public and to
monitor performance under the service planning framework.

e There is a clear scheme of delegation for officers and members within the
Constitution

e The council has robust financial planning processes, including the preparation
of a medium-term financial plan and an annual budget that is monitored
regularly throughout the year
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e The Cabinet meets with the Corporate Management Team, both as a whole
where possible, on a monthly basis to discuss matters relevant to the delivery
of the Corporate Plan and other matters arising in the intervening periods

e Every Corporate Management Team agenda is accompanied by a list of its
delegated powers

Core Principle 3: promoting the values of West Somerset District Council and
demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high
standards of conduct and behaviour:

e The Standards Committee promotes high standards of behaviour by

Managers are responsible for making sure members of staff keep to policies,
procedures, laws and regulations. The financial management of the council is
conducted in accordance with its financial regulations and contract standing
orders — part of the constitution and updated in each year.

The Management Team has set up a reqular ‘Governance Group’ meeting,
with the intention of meeting twice a year (it met at the end of May 2012) to
discuss matters relating to corporate governance, including preparation of this
Statement and assurances by Managers that they are operating within the
framework identified above

The Council maintains an Internal Audit Service through the South West Audit
Partnership (SWAP) that operates to standards specified by the Institute of
Internal Auditors (I1A) and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
Accountants (CIPFA).

The Standards Committee reviews the Annual Governance Statement as part
of its business throughout the year.

The future of the Standards Committee is being reviewed by Council; in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2011 there is a proposal to adopt
a revised code of conduct

The Council has improved arrangements relating to the declaration of
employee and member interests and disclosure of interests in related parties,
following audit recommendations

Core Principle 4: taking informed and transparent decisions that are subject to
effective scrutiny and risk management arrangements:

e The Council has adopted a Constitution that sets out how it operates, how
decisions are taken and the procedures to follow.

e All council meetings are open to the press and public, except where personal
or confidential matters are discussed. Members of the public are allowed to
speak at meetings and have done so regularly throughout the year. The
public element of all formal meetings are normally subject to audio recording.

e The Cabinet and Scrutiny Committee have forward plans that are available on
the council’'s website via the recording of minutes and agenda

e The Council has an approved risk management strategy (refreshed in
December 20116) that identifies how risks are identified and monitored
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e In order to ensure that day-to-day business of the Council considers risk
within its decision-making processes each committee report must include risk
management comments to help inform members’ decisions

e Non-executive members can ‘call-in’ Cabinet decisions; this was last utilised
during 2009/10. Many issues pass through Scrutiny in order for comments to

e busi ring o .

e The council has an effective internal audit function provided by SWAP

e The Audit Committee receives presentations from Group Managers and
Service Lead Officers throughout the year on service issues.

¢ Regular budget monitoring reports are sent to budget holders; monthly
reports are made to Corporate Management Team and quarterly reports to
members through the performance report

e Financial training has been provided to officers and members during the year

e The CFO has direct access to the Chair of Audit Committee and the Audit
Commission_and regularly meets with both, at least 4 times a year

Core Principle 5: developing the capacity and capability of members and
officers to be effective in their roles:

e The Council has a personal development review (PDR) process in place for
managers to discuss with each member of staff their capacity and capability
to carry out their role and future roles. They are then responsible for
identifying appropriate training and development opportunities

e Job descriptions are in place for all posts, and the council completed the
introduction of its ‘job evaluation’ scheme in 2009/10

e There is a new member induction programme which will is being rolled-out for
newly elected councilors following the May 2011 elections.

¢ New Members were given the opportunity to attend financial training in 2011
and 9 attended.

e Sector advisor attended meetings to help Members scrutinise the Treasury
Management Strateqy

¢ Members of the Audit Committee receive dedicated sessions to help them
understand the layout and content of the statement of accounts, to assist with
scrutiny of the figures

Core Principle 6: engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure
robust public accountability:

e Area panels ensure local accountability and local access — these are attended
by the Chief Executive or Corporate Director

e As aresult of budget savings proposed by the Cabinet, representations were
received from a number of organiszations that were potentially impacted by
the proposals, particularly in relation to equalities issues-

e A summarised statement of accounts is available on the council’'s website

e Regular ‘under the spotlight’ staff briefings undertaken by the Chief Executive
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e The Council has created a Community Liaison post, which exists to improve
relations with parishes and towns and acts as editor for the ‘Community
Matters’ communiqué with these partner bodies.

e Two surveys have been undertaken during the year; there is an Annual
Satisfaction Survey that informs the council’s Value for Money arrangements,
and in addition a ‘West Somerset Residents Consultation’ was carried out.

The authority’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government.

Review of effectiveness

West Somerset Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review
of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal
control.

The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of SWAP, the council’s internal
auditors, and the Corporate Management Team who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment. SWAP has been
able to offer ‘Reasonable Assurance’ in 2009/10-and, 2010/11 and 2011/12 that the
system of internal control is in place and working well.

The process that has been applied to maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the governance framework include:

e The monitoring officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the
Constitution to ensure its aims and principles are adequate. The Council
reviews the constitution annually through its Standards Committee.

e The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of Internal Audit, and the
Annual Governance Statement. It receives reports from internal audit on a
quarterly basis and agrees Internal and External Audit Plans. It also has a
call in role for any service that receives a “partial” or “no assurance” audit
opinion

o Internal Audit through SWAP is responsible for monitoring the quality and
effectiveness of systems of internal control. The Audit Service has a Charter
approved by the Council and there are no restrictions on the scope of their
work. A risk model is used to formulate the plan and approved by the Audit
Committee. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each
audit to be submitted to the service lead officer with copies to the relevant
Group Manager. All audit reports include an ‘opinion’ that provides
management with an independent judgement on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Reports include recommendations for
improvement that are detailed in an action plan that is agreed with the service
lead officer

o Internal Audit (SWAP) is subject to regular inspection by the Council’s
external auditors who place reliance on the work carried out by Internal Audit

e The Council's Financial Regulations are kept under continuous review and
revised periodically — the last review was approved in July 2010

In its review of effectiveness, the Authority has assessed its overall governance
arrangements as adequate.
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We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework by the audit committee and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Significant governance issues

A number of actions were identified during_audits undertaken in the lastreview
wndertakenyear; an update on progress is noted here —
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Contract Management — A number of improvements to the council’s record

keeping relating to contracts and tendering were identified and will be taken
into account in the refreshed Procurement Strategy and the annual update of
the Council’'s Constitution

Maximising Income — Improvements identified for the budget-setting process

and the involvement of the finance team have been implemented as part of
the 2012/13 budget procedures
Partnership Arrangements — A humber of changes to the management of

partnerships, including classification, guidance and monitoring were agreed
and an update given to the Audit Committee in September 2011 which
addressed the issues raised

Business Continuity — The Council’s business continuity arrangements have

been refreshed in January 2012 and take account of recommendations made
following an internal audit report
Community Safety — Staff have been reminded of their responsibilities under

Crime and Disorder legislation as part of a ‘mainstreaming’ exercise, and the
induction process updated
Internal Processes — Recommendations made in relation to compliance with

Over th
We are

relevant guidance and improvements to processes have been identified and
implemented

e coming year we will continue to enhance our governance arrangements.
satisfied that these steps, shown above, will address the need for

improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

On behalf of WSC:

Signed

Leader

Chief E

of the Council

xecutive
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